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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the 51* Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of TRIOCHEM
PRODUCTS LIMITED (CIN: L24249MH1972PLC0O15544) will be held at the Registered Office of the
Company at Sambava Chambers, 4" Floor, Sir. P, M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 on Thursday. 24” August
2023 at 3.00 P.M, to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business
1. Adoption of Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial vear
ended March 31, 2023 wogether with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. Re-Appointment of Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma (DIN: 01457322) as a director, liable to retire by
rotation, who had offered himself for re-appointment:

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma (DIN: 014573.22), who retires by rotation,
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment,

Special Business
3. The continuation of directorship of Mr, Shyam Sundar Sharma (DIN: 01457322), aged 76 years
as a ‘Non-Executive, Non-lndependent Director’ of the Company.

To approve the continuation of directorship of Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma (TN: 01457322), aged 76
vears as a Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director’ of the Company, who is liable to retire by
rotation and had ollered himself for re-appointment, in terms of Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 1o
consider and if thought fit, w pass with or without modifications. the following resolution as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17{1A) of the Securitics and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification (s}
‘amendment(s) | re-enactment(s) thereto), approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the
continuation of directorship of Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma (DIN: 01457322), aged 706 years, as a 'Non-
Executive, Non-Independent Director’ of the Company, liable to retire by rotation and whe

himself for re-appointment.”
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4. Authorization for Related Party Transaction
To consider and if though fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in continuation of and in addition to the Resolution passed through Special
resolution in Annual General Meeting held on 26™ August, 2022 and pursuant 1o the Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meeting of Board & its Powers) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable provistons, if any, of the Act, and Regulation 23 of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations”) read
with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder (“the Act”), and
subject to such other regulations, guidelines, circulars, notifications, clarifications and Laws {including
any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), and such other
approvals, sanctions, consents and permissions as may be deemed necessary consent be and is hereby
accorded 1o the Board of Directors of the Company or any Commitiee thereof, to enter into
contracts/agreements as defined in the Companies Act, 2013 with the related parties up to maximum
per annum amounts with effect trom April 1, 2023, as appended herein below:

Name of Related Partics | Companies | Transaction defined u/s 188(1) of Companies Act, 2013 |

{Rs. in Crores) |
;"Namc of Related Parties Sale ul-';n'_v | Purchase of any | E Payment of
| Companies goods and goods and Expenses and
materials materials Reimbursement Paid

On Actual basis, exempted being in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis.
| (Subject to a maximum of amount p.a. as mentioned against the name of the Company).

f G Amphray Pharmaceuticals Pve Lid 15 20
| Triochem Laboratories Pyt Ld 15 20 -
: Ambernath Plasto Packaging Pvt Ltd 10 TF 20 -
| PROPRIETORSHIP FIRM:
G Amphray Laboratories 00) 40 20

[i]RECTDRS-‘KMPS"EEL%TT"TS OF DIRECTORS & KMPs{OTHER FIRMS & COMPANIES in which
Director have some interest as per the provisions of section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013
Mrs. Grace R. Deora * = |
Mr. Rajesh R. Deora
Mr. Rajiv R. Deora
Ramu M. Deora HUF -
Ramu § Deora HUF

Any Contract or transaction with all the above parties for selling or otherwise disposing of, or

buying. property of anv kind to be on market value and on arm lengths relationship basis only.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board Committee be
and is hereby authorized to agree, make, accept, and finalize all such terms, g¢of i

maodification(s), and alteration(s) as it may deem fit within the aforesaid I
Board/Committee is also hereby authorized to resolve and settle all questions, difficylia

<
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that may arise with regard to such payment and to finalize and execute all agreements, documents, and
writings and to do all acts, deeds, and things in this connection and incidental as the Board Commitee
in its absolute discretion may deem fit without being required to seek any further consent or approval
of the members or otherwise 1o the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have been given
approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Commiltee thereof, be
and are hereby authorized to execute the documents, deeds or writings required to be executed in
relation to the and other incidental documents, make applications to regulatory and government
authorities for the purposes of obtaining all approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions required
by the Company and to do all acts and deeds to give effect to this resolution,”

NOTES:

1.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, a member entitled 10 attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting ("AGM") is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himselfherself and the
proxy need notbe a Member of the Company. The proxy form, in order to be effective, must be received
at the Company's Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. Proxies submitted on
behall of companies, societies, partnership firms, etc. must be supported by appropriate resolution /
authority, as applicable, issued on behalf of the nomination organization. The proxy form is annexed
to this notice.

Members are requested 1o note that a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding
50 and holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying
voting rights. Il proxy is proposed to be appointed by Members holding more than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any

other person or Members.

In case aof joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of
name will be entitled 1o vate.

Entry to the place of meeting will be regulated by an attendance slip which is annexed to this notice.
The MembersProxies attending the mecting are kindly request to complete the enclosed attendance
slip and affix their signature at the place provided thereon and hand it over at the venue of the meeting,

Route map showing direction to reach the venue of the 31% Annual General meeting is given at the end
of the Notice,

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out material
facts concerning the business under ltem No. 3 and 4 of the Notice is annexed hereto. The Board of
Directors have considered and decided to include Item No, 3 and 4 as given above, as Special Business
in the [orthcoming AGM as they are unavoidable in nature. However, for ftem No. 2 a

details of director seeking re-appointment by way of retire by rotation as required

6
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Regulations and Secretarial Standards-2 on General Meetings issueed by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India is annexed to this Notice.

7. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under
Section 170 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in
which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act will be available for inspection
by the Members at the Annual General Meeting.

8. In line with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report
2022-23 is being sent through electronic mode 1o those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered
with the Company Depositories. The Notice conveving the 51% AGM has been uploaded on the website
of the Company at www.triochemproducts.com under ‘Investor Relations™ section and may also be
accessed on the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e, BSE Limited at www bseindia.com. The Notice is

also available on the website of CDSL al www.evolingindid.com.

9. Pursuant to section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 10 of the Companies {Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 42 of the 5EBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company
will remain closed [rom Friday, August 18, 2023, to Thursday, August 24, 2023 (both days inclusive) for
the purpose of 51% AGM.

a) For Shares held in electronic form: To all the beneficial Owners as at the end of the day on
Thursday, August 17, 2023, in the list of beneficial owners to be furnished by NSDL and Central
Depository Service (India) Limited ('CDSL'); and

b) For Shares held in physical form: To all Members in respect of shares held in physical form after
giving effect to valid transmission and transposition request lodged with the Company as of the

close of business house on Thursday, August 17, 2023,

10, Effective April 1, 2019, the Company has stopped accepting any fresh transfer requests for securities
held in physical form. [n view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares, Members
holding shares in physical form are requested to dematenialised their holdings, Members may contact
RTA ie. Link Intime India Pvi. Lid, Address: C-101, 1% Floor, 247 Park. L. B. 5. Marg Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai 400 (83, Maharashira at mthelpdesk(e linkintime.¢o.in for assistance in this regards. Members
may also refer to Frequently Asked Questions ('FAQSs') on the Company's website at

hitps:www. iriochemproducts.com uploads dnvestor-relations/pdis/ cequenlv-asked-quesations-fag-

23-1697 pdf

I1. The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act requires the Company;
Registrar to records additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail address, bank
details for payment of dividend. etc. A form for capturing additional derails is available on the
Company's  website  under the section ‘Investor Relations’ tab  ‘lnvestor &

https: www.triochemproducts.comyinvestor-relations investor-relations. aspxtvear = 20
attached 1o this Annual Report, Member holding shares in physical form are request

1
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fillec-in form to the Company or to the Registrar in physical mode as per instructions mentioned in the
form. Members holding shares in electronic [orm are requested to submit the details o their respective
DPs only and not to the Company or RTA.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, ¢-mail
address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, regisiering of nomination, power of attorney registration,
Bank Mandate details, etc. to their DI's in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the Registrar
at rnthelpdesk(@ linkintime.co.in in case the shares are held in physical form, quoting their folio
number, Further, Members may note that SEB! has mandated the submission of PAN by every
participant in the sceurities market.,

12, Nomination Facility: As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination
is available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members holding shares in single
name and who have not yet registered their nomination are requested to register the same by
submitting Form No. SH-13/18R-3, If a member desire to cancel the earlier nomination and record fresh
nomination, he may submit the same in Form No. SH-1415R-3. Members holding shares in physical
form are requested to submit the forms to Ms. Link Intime India Pvt, Lid. the Company's Share
Registrars and Transfer Agent. Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain form from their
respective Depository Farticipant.

13, Consolidation of Physical Share Certificates: Members holding shares in physical form, in identical
order of names, in more than one folio are requested to send to the Company or RTA, the details of
such folios together with the shares certificates for consolidating their holdings in one folio. A
consolidated share certificate will be issued to such Members after making requisite changes,

14. To prevent fraudulent transaction, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the
Company of any change in address or demise of any Members as soon as possible. Members are also
advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings should
be obtained from the concerned DP and holdings should be verified from time to time.

15. Process for registering e-mail address to receive this Notice along with eredentials for remote e-voting:
a.  Online update on web portal at htips: linkintime co.in EmailReg/ Email Register. html

b. For Physical shareholders: please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder,
scanned copy of the share cetificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copv of PAN card),
AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email 10
rat.helpdeskie linkintime co.in

¢.  For Demat sharcholders: please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneliciary 1D or
NSDIL-16 dhigit DPID+CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement. PAN

Company/RTA email to mthelpdesk( linkintime .co.in




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED m‘

CHEM

d. The company/RTA shall co-ordinate with CDSL and provide the Jogin credentials 1o the above-
mentioned shareholders,

10. Remote e-voting before during the AGM:

1. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations,
as may be amended, and MCA Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-voting to its
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 51" AGM. For this purpose, the Company
has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSLY) for
facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting's agency. The facility of
casting votes by a member using remote ¢-voling system on the date of the 51" AGM will be
provided by CDSL.

2. Members of the Company holding shares cither in physical form or in electronic form as on the
cut-off date of Thursday, August 17, 2023, may cast their vote by remote e-voting, A person who is
not a Member as on the Cut-off date should treat this Notice tor information purpose only. A person
whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners
maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of
remole e-voting before as well as during the AGM. Any non-individual shareholders or shareholder
holding securities in physical mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a Member
of the Company afier the dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date ic
Thursday, August 17, 2023, may obtain the User 1D and Password by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting(er edslindia.com.

Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, who acquire shares of the Company and
become a Member of the Company after dispatch of the Notice and holding shares as of the cut-off
date i.e. Thursday, August 17, 2023 may follow the login process mentioned below in point 18.

3. The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, August 21, 2023, at 9.00 a.m, (IST) and ends
on Wednesday, August 23, 2023, at 5.00 pm (IST). The remote e-voting module shall be disabled
by CDISL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on resolution is cast by the Member, the Member shall
not be allowed to change it subsequently.

The vating rights of the Members (for voling through remete e-voting before during the AGM) shall
be proportion to their share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off
Thursday, August 17, 2023,

4. The remote e-voting module during the AGM shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 15 minutes after
the conclusion of the Mecting,
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scrutinise the remote e-vating process s well as voting through Poll paper at the Meeting, in a fair and
transparent manner.

The Scrutiniser shall, immediately after the conclusion of evoting at the AGM, first count the votes cast
at the Annual General Meeting, thereafter unblock the vates cast through e-voting in the presence of
two wilnesses not in the employment of the Company. Scrutinizer shall, submit within the time
stipulated under the applicable laws, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total voles cast in favor
or against, if any to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall counter-sign the
same. Thereafter, the Chairman or the person authorized by him in writing shall declare the results of
the voting lorthwith.

The Results declared along with the Serutinizers Report shall be placed on the Company's website
www.lriochemproducts.com under the section ‘Investor Relations’ tab ‘Financial Information: Annual
General Meeting | Report / Return’ and on the website of CDSL immediately after the result is declared
by the Chairman/Authorized person and the results will also be communicated to the Stock Exchange

where the shares of the Company are listed.

18. THE INTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDRES FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:

i) The remote remole evoting period begins on 217 August 2023 at 09.00 a.m. and ends on 23"
August 2023 at 05.00 p.m. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares cither
in physical form or in dematerialized form. as on the cut-off date 17" August 2023 may cast their
vote electronically. The cvoting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting therealter.
Sharchelders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at

the meeting venue.

ii.)  Pursuant to SEBl Circular No, SEBIHOWCED/CMEYCIRT2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to
its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. Currently, there are multiple evoting
service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates
registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the

shareholders.

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has
been decided to enable evoting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login
credential, through their demat accounts websites of Depositories’ Depository Participants. Demat
account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs,
thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of

participaling in e-voling process.

i) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBUHO/CFD/CMD/CIR/ P/ 2020242 dated December 9,

\O
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Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised o update their mobile number and email [d in
their demat accounts in order 1o access e-Voting facility.

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below:

Type of | Login Method

shareholders

Individual 1) Users of who have opted for CDSL's Easi | Easiest facility, can login through
Sharcholders their existing user id and password. Option will be made available to reach
Holding e-Voting page without any further authenticaon. The URLs for users to
seclirilies in login to Easi | Easiest are: hitps: 'web.cdslindia. com/'myeasi home login
Demat mode or www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System
with CDSL Myeasi,

2} After successful login the Fasi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting |
Menu. On clicking the e-voting menu, the user will be able 1o see hisher
holdings along with links of the respective e-Voting service provider Le.
CDSL NSDL/ KARVY) LINK INTIME as per information provided by Issuer /
Company. Additionally, we are providing links to e-Yoting Service Providers,
so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ site directly.

3} 1f the user is not registered for Easi‘Easiest, option to register is available

at hitps: web.cdslindig.com/myeasi, Begistration/ EasiRegistration

|4y Alternatively, the user can directly aceess e-Voting page by providing Demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered
Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After suceessiul
authentication, user will be provided links for the respective ESP where the
¢-Voting is in progress during or before the AGM.

' Individual 1) If you are already registered for NSDL [DeAS facility, please visit the e-
Sharcholders Services wehsite of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
holding hitps: /eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
securities in Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial
demat mode Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS' section. A new
with NSDL screen will open. You will have to enter your User [D and Password. After

successful authentication, vou will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on
“Access to e-Yoling” under e-Voting services and vou will be able 1o see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voling scrvice provi T nd
" . - . : = T L (")
vou will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider websit timg.

&)
(W -
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vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voling
during the meeting,

If the user is not registered for 1DeAS e-Services, option 1o register is
available at hups: eservices.nsdl.com. Select "Register Online for [DeAS
“Portal or click at https: /eservices. nsdl.com SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the

following URL: htps: 'www.evoling.nsdl.com’ cither on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voling svstem is
launched, click on the icon “Login® which is available under
‘Sharcholder Member' section. A new screen will open, You will have to
enter your User 1D {i.e. vour sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDLY, Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. Alter
successful authentication, vou will be redirected to NSDI. Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service
provider website for casting vour vote during the remote e-Voling period or
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting,

Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
sharcholders | vour Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility,
(holding After successful login, vou will be able to see e-Voting option. Once vou click on
sccurities in | e-Voting option, vou will be redirected 1o NSDLCDSL Depository site after

through e-Voting service provider's website for casting your vote during the remote e-

their Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Depository

Participants

tdemat mode) | successlul authentication, wherein vou can see e-Voting leature. Click on

login company name or e-Voling service provider name and you will be redirected to

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User [1)/ Password are advised to use Forget

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues
related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSIL

maocle with CDSL

Login type Helpdesk details ]
Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
holding securities in Demat CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at

helpdesk.evoting(@ edslindia.com or

contact at (122- 23038738 aned 22-2305554

|
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v}

| Individual Sharcholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
| holding sceurities in Demat NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at

moke with NSDL

|

evolingfensdl.coin or
Call atwoll free nos 18000 1020 990 aned 1800 22 44 30

Login method for eVoting for shareholders other than individual shareholders & ph}‘siml.

sharcholders,

1} The shareholders should log on to the evoting website www evotingindia.com

2y Click on “Sharcholders” module.

3) Now enter your User [D
4, For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digits Client ID,
¢.  Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered
with the Company. OR

Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL's EASIEASIEST eservices, vou can logn at

hitps: www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using vour login credentials. Once you
successfully log-in to CDSL's EASLEASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and
proceed directly to cast your vote electronically,

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displaved and Click on Login.

5) I you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www evotingindia.com and

voted on an earlier evoting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6) If you are a firsttime user follow the steps given below:

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN

Divide m.i
Bank Details
OR
Date of Birth
(DOB)

7)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT tab.

Enter vour 10-digit alpha-num::riu.*f".-ﬁ issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable for both demat sharcholders as well as physical shareholders)

¢ Sharcholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company;
Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent
by Company/RTA or contact Company RTA,

' Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in ded mmyyyy format) as

recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to

login.

¢ [f bath the details are not recorded with the depository or company,
please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details

-Q-'[l."(.!L.'c

- £

)
))
¥/

field as mentioned in instruction (v).
s

a
G
=
-
v
o

1
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8} Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection
screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password
Creation' menu wherein they are required 1o mandatorily enter their login password in the
new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for
voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that
company opts for e-voting through CDSL pladorm. It is strongly recommended not to share
vour password with any other person and take utmost care 1o keep your password confidential.

9} For sharcholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on
the resolutions contained in this Notice.

10) Click on the EVSN for TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED on which you choose to vote.

11) On the voting page, vou will see "RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION" and against the same the
option “YESNO" for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies
that vou assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution,

12) Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if vou wish to view the entire Resolution details.

13) After selecting the resolution, you have decided 1o vote on, click on "SUBMIT". A confirmation
box will be displaved. If vou wish to confirm your vote, click on "OK", else to change your vote,
click on "CANCEL" and accordingly modify your vote.

14) Once you "CONFIRM™ vour vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your

VEIC.

15) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” aption on the
Voting page.

16) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User [ and the
image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the
sysiem.

7) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL's mobile app m-Voting. The m-Voting app
can be downloaded [rom Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users can download
the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively.

v.)  Facility for Non - Individual Shareholders and Custodians - Remote Voting
s  Non-Individual shareholders {i.c. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are

required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the "Corporates”

maodule,

e A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the
emailed to helpdesk.evoting(t edslindia.com.

\ 4
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e After receiving the login details a Compliance ser should be created using the admin login
and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish
L vore on,

o The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@ cdslindia.com
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote,

¢ A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued
in favour of the Custodian, if anv, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the
scrutinizer to verify the same.

e Alternatively, Non Individual shareholders are required 1o send the relevant Board
Resolution/Authority letter ete. together with altested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the
email address investor(@ triochemproduets.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not

uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

1%, INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:
13 The procedure ¢-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above lor
Remaote e-voting

2) Sharcholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be ¢ligible 1o atiend the meeting,
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM

20, PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL ADDRESSESMOBILE NO. ARE NOT
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS FOR
E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:

1) For Physical sharcholders - please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name ol sharcholder,
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (selFattested scanned copy of PAN card),
AADHAR (self-antested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Companv/RTA email Id.

2} For Demat shareholders - please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary 1D or
NSDL-16 digit DPID 4 CLIDY, Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement,
PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card)
to Company/RTA email Id.

3} For Individual Demat sharcholders - Please update vour email id & maobile no. with your respective
Depasitary Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through
Depository

21. For assistance | queries for E-voting ete;
1) If vou have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the

System, you can write an email o helpdesk.evoting@ edslindia.com or contact at 02
and (22-23058542/43.

\5
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2} All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be address to Mr,
Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL), Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing. 25" Floor,
Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013

or send an email to helpdesk ecoting(twedsindia.com or call on 022.2358342/43,

22, GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS
1. Members may avail dematerialization facility by opening Demat Accounts with the Depository
Participants of wither National Securities Depository Limited or Central Depository Services (India)
Limited and get the equity share centificate held by them dematerialized. The ISIN No. of the
Company is INE331E01013

2. Members may also note that an electronic copy of the 51" Annual Report including Notice along
with auendance slip and proxy form will be available on the Company's website at
www. triochemproducts.com Even after registering for e-communication, Members are entitled to

receive such communication in physical form, upon making such a request for the same free of
cost. For any communication, the sharcholders may also send their request to the Company's

investor E-mail ld: investor{et triochemproducts.com

By order of the Board of Directors
For Triochem Products Limited

—

Grace R Deora Ramu S, Deora
[Hrector Director
[N DOA L2080 DN (031 2469

Place: Mumbai: Dated: 26" May 2023

Registered Office:

4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir . M. Boad, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001
Email: investor{ triochemproducts.com;

Website: www lriochemproducts.com
Phone No.: 91 22 22665150,
Fax No.o 91 22 22024637

*
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Annexure to Notice
Item No.Z:
PROFILE OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING
Pursuant to Regulation 30(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, and pursuant to clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (55-2) the details of the
Directors seeking appointment re-appointment at the 51% Annual General Meeting is furnished below:

Name Of Director Mr. Shvam Sundar Sharma

Director Identification Number I (1457322

Designation Non-Executive Director

:;Lge - 76 Years

Qualification B.Com. (Hons.), LLB., FCA.

Expertise “Business sLmttgﬂ' and Development, Leadership in industrial

development & management and Steategy leadership in
Finance and Investment.

Date of first appointment in the current | 287 May 1985

| designation

Sharcholding in the Company as on 31° | Nil
 March, 2023 _
| Directorships and Committce Nil

memberships held in other companies

as on 31" March, 2023 (Excluding Private |
Companies) '
Relationships between Directors and No

Key Managerial Personnel :

No, of Board Meetings atended during 4ot 4
the financial year 2022-23. _
Terms and conditions of re-appointment | As per the resolution passed by the Shareholders of the
Company on the 48" Annual General Meeting held on 26"
September 2020, Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma has been
appointed as a Non-Executive Directors, liable to retire by
rotation.

| Details of proposed remuneration Nil

The Board of Directors proposed the re-appointment of Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma as Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director on the Board of Directors of the Company and recommends the resofution as set out
at [tem no. 2 of the Notice and explanatory statement for the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting,

No other Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or

interested in the re-appointment of Mr, Shyam Sundar Sharma as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company, expect to extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company,

|
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Annexure to Notice
Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companics Act, 2013 (‘the act’), the following Explanatory Statement sets
out all material facts relating to the Business mentioned under ltem no. 3 of the accompanying Notice dated
26" May, 2023,

Item No. 3:

Mr, Shyam Sundar Sharma, age 70, is the Non-Executive Director of the Company, liable 1o retire by
rotation, In accordance with Regulation [7(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the directorship of
any person as a Non-Executive Director who has attained the age of seventy-five years after April 1, 2019
shall be appointed reappointed as a non-executive director unless a special resolution is passed to that
effect in which case the explanatory statement annexed to the Notice for such motion shall indicate the
justification for appointing such a person.

Mr. Shyvam Sundar Sharma, Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company has exceeded the
age of 75 years and is retiring by rotation at this Annual General Meceting,

The relevant details of Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma seeking continuation of his directorship subject 1o
approval by the sharcholders by a special resolution under Item No. 3 of the Notice, as required under
Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations read with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and

relevant accounting standards are given below:

1) Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma (DIN: 01457322) was appointed as Non-Independent Non-Executive
Director at the 48" Annual General Meeting held on 26" September 2020 and that he is liable to retire
by rotation.

2)  As per Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Regulations), which came into effect from April 1, 2019
provides that no listed entity shall appoint a person or continue the directorship of anv person as 4
non-executive director who has attained the age of seventy five years unless a special resolution is
passed to that effect in which case the explanatory statement annexed 1o the notice for such motion
shall indicate the justification for appointing such a person.

3) Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma, aged 70 years, having deep knowledge and experience in administration,
industrial development & management, strategy leadership. Finance, Investment, etc. He was also
associated in various other companies, spanning over 45 vears, Mr. Shyam has spent 40 vears in the
field of industrial development and management,

4) His brief profile is given below:

Name Of Director Mr, Shyam Sundar Sharma

Director Identification Number 01457322

Dr:sag_naaaﬁ Non-Executive Director R mx\\

Age 76 Years //q /‘“‘\"A\
| Qualification B.Com, (Hons.), LLB.. FCA

| 2
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Expertise Business strategy and Development, Leadership in industrial
development & management and Strategy leadership in
Finance and Investment,

Date of first appointment in the 28" ;;'-'1:1'_\-‘ 1985
current designation

Shareholding in the Company as on | wil
31" March, 2023
Directorships and Committee Nil

memberships held in other
companies as on 31" March, 2023
(Excluding Private Companices)

Relationships between Dircctors ' No
and Key Managerial Personnel .
No. of Boare:i“';icttmgs attended [ 4ol 4
| during the financial vear 2022-23.
Terms and conditions of re- As per the resolution passed by the Shareholders of the
appointment Company on the 48" Annual General Meeting held on 26"

| September 2020, Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma has been
appointed as a Non-Executive Directors, liable to retire by
rolation,

Details of proposed remuneration | il

5) The Board of Directors is of the opinion that Mr, Shyam Sundar Sharma has been an integral part of
the Board, has provided valuable insights to the Company and possesses relevant expertise and deep
knowledge and expericnce in administration, industrial development & management, stralegy
leadership, Finance, [nvestment, ¢te. His guidance in the past has been notable and supportive to the
Company in dealing with complex matters. Accordingly, it is felt that his association as non-executive
director will be beneficial and in the best interest of the Company. In line with the provisions of SEB]
(Listing Regulations), your directors recommend his appointment as Non-Independent Non-Executive
Director at the 51% Annual General Meeting by way of Special resolution and that he is liable 1o retire
by rotation.

G} The Board of Directors accardingly recommends the Special Resolution as mentioned at item no. 3 of
this Notice for approval of the Members of the Company.

No other Director or Kev Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or

interested in the aforementioned resolution,

Item no. 4:
Pursuant to Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with Rule 15 of the mepamu
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 the Company is required to oblain cons
and prior approval of the members by Special Resolution in case certain Related Party Tg

such sum as is specified in the Rules. The aforesaid provisions are not applicable in rgs

1 9
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entered into by the Company in the ordinary course of business on arm'’s length basis. Though the Company
always does the business with its related parties at arm length and in ordinary course of business but there
may be some transactions done in the interest of the Company and for which your approval is required
under the provisions of the Act.

The proposal outlined above is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the resolution
setting out in accompanying Notice as Special Resolution.

None of the Director or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is concerned or interested in the said
resolution expect to extent of their shareholding in the company or any other interest as Director or
sharcholder or partner or otherwise in such related party entity, if any,

The Board recommends this Resolution for your Approval.

By order of the Board of Directors
For Triochem Products Limited

B T
Grace R Deora Ramu S. Dedra

Direcior Director

DN 00312080 DIN: 0312369

Place: Mumbai; Dated: 26" May 2023

Registered Office:

4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P, M. Road, Fort, Mumbai: 400 001
Email: investor( triochemproducts.com;

Wehsite: www. trinchemproducts.com
Phone No: 91 22 22663150
Fax No.: 91 22 22024657

[ ™
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P, M. Road, Fort, m
Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN: 400001, Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150 CHEM

Fax: 00 91 (22) 22202 40657 E-mail; info(w amphray.com
Website: www.triochemproducts.com Corporate Identity Number: L24249MH197 2PLCOT5544

BOARD'S REPORT & MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Dear Members,

The Board of Directors are pleased to submit its report on the performance of the Company along with the
audited financial statements for the vear ended 31st March, 2023,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS: (Rupee in Lakh)
Particulars  Year ended Year ended
R March 2023 | March 2022%
Revenue from Operation | - 88216 |
Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization (106,49) 18995 |
Less: Finance Cost ' < B '
Less: Depreciation and Amornization Expense 10.50 11.92 |
Profit before exceptional items and tax (11699 17632 |
| Exceptional Items : - | -
Profit Before Tax (116.99) 176,52
_[..E§h_ Tax Expense (28.48) 44,04
I Profit for the period from m}ntmuing uperatmﬂs (858.51) 132.28
| Profit before tax from discounted operations ' -
Tax expense of discontinued operations B
Profit for the period from discontinued operations . .
 Profit for the period (88.51) | 132.28
__Q_il'_t;r_(‘mmErehcnqwc Income (net of 1ax) (50,4%) | 1.20
Total Comprehensive Income (56.43) | 1.20)
Opening balance in Retained I:arumgs 1,102.91 070.63
Closing balance in Retained Earnings - 1,014.40 1,10291

* Previous year figure has been recast restated.

COMPANY'S PERFOMANCE:

During the financial year 2022-23, revenue from operation decreased to Rs. Nil as against Rs.882.16 lakhs
in previous year. The loss after tax for the current year is Rs.88.51 lakhs against profit of 132,28 lakhs in the
previous year.

The Company has temporarily reduced activity due to the impact of Covid-19 pandemic. The business
requires personal presentation & relationship building has taken a tremendous hit & is unlikely to sce any
possibility of revival in the immediate future, business from the regular customers is shrink % gone! see
significant improvement, therefore temporarily reduce activities Gl a clearer picture em

iy
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The Company is taking all necessary measures in terms of mitigating the impact of the challenges being,
faced in the business. The Company is working towards being resilient in order to sail through the current
situation. It is focused on controlling the fixed costs, maintaining liquidity and closely monitoring the
supply chain to ensure that the manufacturing facilities to restart smoothly.

DIVIDEND:

Since there is loss, the directors are unable to recommend any dividend for the financial year ended March
31, 2023, The Dividend Distribution Policy of the Company is set out as “Annexure A" and the same is
posted on the Company's website at following the link:

hitps: www._triochemproducts. com/uploads Investor-relations pdis dividend-distribution-policy-23-

1720.pdf

BUSINESS OPERATIONS:

During the vear under review temporarily reduce activity due to the impact of Covid-19 pandemic. The
business requires personal presentation & relationship building has taken a tremendous hit & is unlikely
to see any possibility of revival in the immediate future, business from the regular customers is shrink. We
do not see significant improvement. The Company will temporarily reduce activities till a clearer picture

Emerges,

The Company's operations for the financial vear have been impacted by Covid-19 pandemic, the
Management of the Company has assessed the impact on its financial statements/position such as
investments, inventories, trade pavables and based on its best judgenient and reasonable estimate, has
concluded that there are no material adjustments required in the Financial Statements. The Company has
carried out this assessment based on available internal and external sources of information upto the date
of approval of these financial statements and believes that the impact is not material to these financial
statements and expects to recover the carrving amount of its assets. However, the impact assessment is a
continuous process, given the uncertainties associated with its duration and nature, it is not possible to
estimate the future impact as at the date of approval of this financial statement. The Company continues to
monitor the economic effects of the pandemic while aking steps to improve its execution efficiencies and
the financial outcome.

The management expects no impairment to the carrving amounts of these assets, the Management will
continue too closely monitor any changes w future economic conditions and asses its impact on the
operation, The Company has sufficient liquidity to meet its financial obligations, we are also making regular
pavments fo our suppliers, employvees, and other concerned persons. The liquidity position of the company
is in comfortable zone.

The market is expected to be stable during the end of FY2023-24, with the expectation of an improvement
in the market conditions during the year, the Company will endeavor to perform better than last vear,

As regards 1o infrastructure, Your Company's head office and factory are adequately equipped ia
complete support to the customer. Internal control systems have been well establighel ‘36

consciousness in factory operaton will lead 1o improved profitability in the long run. Y i

confident that the company will improve the performance in the current year

23
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SHARE CAPITAL:
During the financial vear under review Rs.24,50,000/- compnising of 2,45,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each
continues 1o be the issued and paid-up capital of the Company,

Further, during the vear under review, the Company has neither issued shares with differential rights as to
divitlendl, voting, or otherwise nor has issued sweat equity under any scheme. Further, none of the Directors
of the Company holds investments convertible into equity shares of the Company as on March 31, 2023.

There is no change in the capital structure of the Company during the vear,

TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserve for the financial year ended March 31, 2023
The Board of Directors have decided to adjust the entire amount of loss for the FY 2022-23 in the profit
and loss account.

DEPOSIT:

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public'members during the vear under review within
the meaning of sections 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, and accordingly, ne amount on account of principal or interest on
public deposits was outstanding as on 31st March, 2023,

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF THE BUSINESS. IF ANY:

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year,

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY,

There are no material changes and commitments which affect the financial position of the Company that
have oceurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date
of this report i.e, between 31" March 2023 to 26" May 2023,

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATES:

During the vear under review, Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associated
companies, therefore disclosures in Form AOC-1 are not provided in this report. The policy for determining
Material Subsidiaries in terms of Regulation 16(1)(c) of the Listing Regulation is not applicable to the
Company.

PROJECTS & EXPANSION PLANS:

The Company assesses the future infrastructure requirements and continuously invests in the same on need
basis, During the financial year under review the Company has not spent any amount towards capital
expenditure.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF):
Your Company did not have any funds lving unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven
there were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protec
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:
Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Management Discussion and Analysis Report ('MDAR') forms part of the Annual Report.

1)

2)

3)

4)

Cutlook 2022-2023: Going forward, despite support from the services sector, it is projected that both
global trade and growth would decline sharply. From a rare of 4% in 2022, global trade growth is
predicred 1o decrease to 1.0% in 2023, in part because of a decline in worldwide demand. Although
there are more global supply chain restrictions than there were before the pandemice, these have been
casing since mid-2022, as scen by lower transit costs and a return 1o normal inventory levels, According
to recent IMF forecasts, global growth will drop down further from an expected 3.4% in CY 2022 10
2.9% in CY 2023, CPI inflation is expected to stay high at 5.2% in CY 2023 belore {alling to a projected
3.2% in CY 2024. The challenges posed by the cost-of-living crisis are expected 1 ease out in the future
on the back of a supportive fiscal policy, It is also anticipated that the monetary policy will maintain its
current trajectory to restore price stability. Structural improvements can make the fight against inflation
easier by bolstering productivity and removing supply chain constraints,

Global Development and Their Effect: Following a considerable recovery in 2022 as markets
recovered [rom the pandemic, the global consumption of medicines wpped out in 2022, The total sales
volume is anticipated to increase at a CAGR of 1.6% in days of therapy, with Asia-Pacific, India, Latin
America, Alrica and the Middle East and China predicted 10 outpace the global volume growth by 2027,
Through 2027, developed nations in Western Europe, North America, Japan and Eastern Europe are
anticipated 1o witness growth at a slower pace of 0.1% to 0.4%, in part because of their existing higher
per capila use. Disruptions caused by the ongoing conflict in Ukraine are also impeding Eastern
Europe's volume growth. Global market growth is anticipated to return to pre-pandemic levels by 2024.
From 2020 to 2027, it is likely that global spending on medications will tatal USD 497 billion more than
it clicd prior to the pandemic. This is because of increased investment on COVID-19 vaccines and novel
treatments as well as other therapeutic sectors,

Indian Economy: The Indian economy demonstrated resilient growth despite the geopolitical and
high inflation-induced global economic headwinds. India ranked as the fifth-largest economy in the
world in terms of US dollars and as one of the countries with the fastest economic growth in FY 2023,
The Indian economy is estimated to have recorded a growth of 7% in FY23, according to the first
advance projections provided by the National Statistical Office (NSOJ on January 6, 2023, Despite the
RBI hiking the repo rate 1o (.5% and placing medium-term 1o short-term liquidity pressure on the
Indian economy, the backdrop of strong credit growth, stable financial markets and the government's
ongoing emphasis on infrastructure and capital spending are favourable for pitching in substantial
invesiments.

Effect on Manufacturing Sector: The manufacturing scetor was drastically impacied by the pandemic.
Itis anticipated that a drop in international demand will adversely impact expors. Real GDP growth
for 2023 to 2024 is projected to be 0.4%, Taking into account all of these factors and keeping the risks
in check, Q1 growth will be 7.8%, Q2 growth will be 6,2%, Q3 growth will be 6.0% and Q4 :
be 0.0%. The risks are evenly distributed, with the CPI inllation prediction for FY20
the first quarter at 5%, the second at 5.4%, the third at 5.6% and the fourth quarter

the outlook for the global economy appears grim. the fact that the Government of |
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been able to safeguard the Indian economy [rom an impending global recession is reflective of India's
strong economic fundamentals. India shows signs of recovery, and pent-up credit demand over the last
two years ofters hope for new growth opportunities in the domestic market.

Specialty Performance Chemicals and Solutions Manufacturing Industry: India occupies a
significant position in global APl market, The Indian APl industry has been garnering a lot of attention
globally due 1o the good quality of APls, which are being manufactured in the country. Recently, the
Indian APl industry has been witnessing a fabulous growth owing to a number of factors, Some of these
factors are patent expiry of blockbuster drugs, increasing demand for low costing generies, and
innovation of new generation of APls. Apart from these, rise in geriatric population, increasing
disposable income, rising healtheare expenditure. and increasing incidences of chronic diseases are the
other reasons which are driving the growth of the Indian APL industry, According to report on “Indian
APl Market Outlook 20227, the Indian APl domestic consumption market is [orecasted o grow at a
CAGR of around 10% from FY2010 - FY2022. This report provides the share of India in the global APl
market. Furthermore, it gives information about the current scenario of the Indian APl market. and
future forecasts related to it. RNCOS analysts have mentioned the major drivers of the market, and
[actors hindering growth of the market. The Indian API market has been segmented on the basis of
various parameters, such as type of manulacturing. type of APL, and type of therapeutic area.

Challenges Galore: Few Manufacturers in the API Industry. India was once a favoured destination for
sourcing low-cost, good quality AP for manufacturing pharmaceutical formulations, However, China
took over this market by creating huge capacitics, Also, the price of APls [rom China is 15-20% less than
their production cost in India, making it more viable for the Indian companies to impon. Consequently.
several companies shifted their focus from the manufacturing of APls to developing formulations.
Anather reason for the reduced number of APl manufacturers is low profit margin in the API business
compared to the formulations business. All these factors have therefore led to the decline in number
ol APl manufacturers in India. Regulatory Changes Pharmaceutical companies are confronted with
intricate regulatory frameworks that vary across different countries. These regulations undergo rapid
changes, and a failure to adapt can result in severe. Regulatory authorities consistently revise guidelines
to enhance drug safety. efficacy, and quality control. necessitating pharmaceutical companies to
maintain constant vigilance and compliance. The small & medium enterprises engaged in AP
manufacturing face a lot of problems in terms of infrastructure, as they do not have enough supply of
water or electricity; also they do not have warehouses where they can keep their excess stock or raw
materials. Inadequate Infrastructure Facilities Infrastructure is the main area where India lacks in
comparison with other countries: In other countries such as China, there are [ree trade zones, high
tech parks, and export processing zones. In India, the recommendations for the development of API
parks are still under consideration and will take tme to get implemented. Therefore, infrastructure
development [or APl production is extremely essential [or the enterprises to manufacture the items o
their maximum capacity (Indian API Market Outlook 2022 by The Associated Chambers of Commerce
and Industry of India)

Way forward: Given the fact that the domestic APL industry has been struggling for a longt

of high dependence on China, it becomes even more prudent for the country to revji@he dome
; : , . : - L dlel i
industry in the wake of an ongoing pandemic, To achieve that, Ministry of Chemicals 4 ?-’:ﬁﬁi

2.6



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED m

8)

{_.}]

10) Internal Control Systems: Your Company has evolved a system of internal controls o e

has recently issued the guidelines of the scheme “Strengthening of Pharmaceutical Industry (SPI) in
11" March 2022 with the objectives of: (a) To strengthen the existing infrastructure [acilities in order
to make [ndia a global leader in the Tharma Sector by providing Financial assistance to pharma clusters
for creation of Commaon Facilities: (b) to upgrade the production facilities of SMEs and MSMEs, to meet
national and international regulatory standards, by providing interest subvention or capital subsidy on
their capital loans; (¢) to promote knowledge and awareness about the Pharmaceutical and Medical
Devices Industry by taking up studies, building databases and brining industry leaders, academia and
policy makers together to share their knowledge and experience. The total financial outlay of the
scheme for a period of five years from 2021-22 10 2025-26.

Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers strives to improve the infrastructural facilities of the pharma sector
in the country towards making India, a global leader in the sector. (a) In order to make the country
Atmanirbhar in pharmaceuticals, the Department of Pharmaceuticals has launched the Production
Linked Incentives (PLI) Scheme for promotion of domestic manufacturing of critical Key Starting
Materials (KSMs)/Drug Intermediates (DIs), and Active Pharmaceuticals Ingredients (APIs) in India. The
outlay of the scheme tenure from 2021-30. (b) Production Link Incentive (PLI) scheme for
Fharmaceuticals has been launched with tenure from FY2021 - FY2029. The scheme intends to enhance
India’s manufactuning capabilitics by increasing investment and  production in the sector and
contributing to product diversilication to high value goods in pharmaceuticals sector. The eligible drugs
under this scheme include APls among other categories of pharmaceutical's products. (¢) Scheme to
provide further support to APl pharma companies through providing, linancial assistance to the States
for establishing three Bulk Drug Parks. (d) Support to the pharma clusters for creating common
infrastructure facilities under Assistance o Pharmaceuticals Industry for Common Facilities (APL-CE).
(¢) Pharmaceutical Technology Upgradation Assistance Scheme (PTUAS) has also been approved 1o
support SME units in pharmaceutical sector for quality & technology upgradation. (Reference Release
ID: 1812312, Posted Un: (1 APR 2(122 3:29 PM by PIB Delhi)

Risk management: As per provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and good corporate governance, the
Company has laid down procedures to inform the Board about the risk assessment and minimisation
procedures and the Board shall be responsible for framing, implementing, and monitoring the risk
management plans for the Company. The aim is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability
and to promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating, and resolving risks associated with the
business: The Audit Committee of the Company has periodically reviewed the various risk associates
with business of the Company. Such review includes risk identification, evaluation and mitigation of
the risk.

Company's Financial Performance & Analysis: During the year under review, due to temporarily
reduce activity due to the impact of Covid-19 pandemic current vear figure are not comparable with
previous year. The revenue [rom operation is Rs. Nil because of temporarily reduce in manufacturing
activities,

o
assels are safeguarded, and transactions are authorised, recorded and correctly report

control system is supplemented by management reviews and independent periodical
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outside chartered accountancy firms which evaluate the [unctioning and quality of internal controls
and provides assurance of its adequacy and efiectiveness. The scope of internal audit covers a wide
varicty of operational methods and, as a minimum, ensures compliance with specified standards with
regard to availability and suitability of policies and procedures, extent of adherence, reliability of
management information svstem and authorization procedures including steps [or safeguarding of
assets. The reports of internal audit are placed before Audit Committee of the Directors. Audit
Committee reviews such audit findings and the adequacy of internal control systems. The Statutory
Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company also interact with the Audit Committee to share
their findings and the status of corrective actions under implementation.

11) Human Recourses: The Company lays great emphasis on proper management of human resources
and believes that this is the most important ingredient for achieving excellence in performance and
sustainable growth, The management constantly reviews the skill mix and takes appropriate steps to
achieve desired skill mix. For upgrading the skill, special emphasis is laid on training. Selective and
intensive training is being imparted to employees at various levels.

12) Cautionary Statement; Statements in the Board's Report and the Management Discussion & Analvsis
describing the Company’s objectives, expectations or forecasts may be forward-looking within the
meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those
expressed in the statement. Important factors that could influence the Company's operations include
global and domestic demand and supply conditions affecting selling prices, changes in government
regulations, tax laws, cconomic development regulations within the country, lockdown conditions
arising out of pandemic or otherwise and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations.

DIRECTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Based on the framework of internal financial control and compliance system established and maintained by
the Company, work performed by the Internal, Statutory, Cost and Secretarial Auditors, including audit of
the internal financial control over financial reporting by the Statutory Auditor and the reviews performed
by Management and the relevant Board Committee, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the
opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year
2022-23.

Accordingly, pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(35) read with Section 134(3)(c) of the

Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) for the time being in force) with respect to

the Directors’ Responsibility Statement, to the best of their knowledge and ability, it is hereby confirmed

that for the year ended March 31, 2023:

1) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule 111 1o the Act, have been followed
and there are no material departures from the same;

of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and of the profitloss of the Compan
vear from April 1, 2022, to March 31, 2023,
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3)

i)

6)

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care lor the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act [or saleguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularitics;

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a ‘going concern’ basis;

the Dircctors have laid down internal financial controls to be lollowed by the Company and that such
internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively, and.

the Directors have devised proper svstems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

The Board received a declaration from all the directors under section 164 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 that none of the directors of the company is disqualified under the
provision of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) or under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

1)

2)

3)

Appointment: No changes have taken place in the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
(KMP) from the date of last Annual Report.

Retirement by rotation and subsequent re-appointment: In accordance with the provision of
Section 152 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including anv statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) and the Articles of Association
of the Company. Mr. Shyam Sundar Sharma (DIN: 01457322) (Non-Executive Non-Independent)
Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the énsuing AGM and being cligible, has offered himself
lor re:appointment, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Board of Directors, In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules
issued thereunder, the Listing Regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Independent Directors and the Managing Director of the Company are not liable to retire by rotation,

The said re-appointment terms and conditions thereof shall be approved by the members at ensuing
AGM as per the provision of the Act and Listing Regulations, Accordingly, 4 resolution is being proposed
in the notice of 51" AGM for the approval of the members of the company refer to item no. 2 and 3.

Pursuant to the provision of Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meeting issued by Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), briel particulars of the directors proposed to be appointed/re-
appointed are provided as an annexure to the notice convening the AGM.

Composition of the Board: The Company's policy is to have an appropriate blend of non-executive

FTCE BE

and independent directors, to maintain the independence of the Board functions of goye

VA

management. No changes have taken place in the Composition of the Board from the da

Report.
2.9
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The composition of the Board of Directors is fully complied with the provision of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 17 of the Listing Regulations, including the appointment of requisite number of
Independent Directors and Woman Director, As on 31 March 2023, the Board comprised of two (2)
Non-Executive Independent Directors and four (4) Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors,
including Woman Director is 4 Non-exccutive Non-Independent Directors. The Board has no
institutional director,

The Company believes in a well-balanced and diverse Board which enriches discussions and enables
effective decision-making. The Board of the Company is diverse in terms of qualification, competence,
skills, and expertise which enables it to ensure long-term value creation for all the stakeholders. The
Board has a fiduciary relationship in ensuring that the rights of all stakeholders are protecied.

Independent Directors with materially significant, pecuniary, or business relationship with the
Company: There is no pecuniary or business relationship between the Non-Executive Independent
Directors and the Company. A declaration to this effect if also submitted by all the Directors at the

beginning of each financial year.

Independent Directors: The Company has received necessary declaration [rom each Independent
Director under Section 149 (7) of the Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the eriteria of independence
laid down in Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 along with declaration received pursuant o
sub rule (3) of Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, They
have also furnished the declaration pursuant to Regulation 25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations
affirming compliance 1o the criteria of Independence as provided under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations.

Based on the declarations and confirmation of the Independent Directars and after undertaking due
assessment of the veracity of the same, the Board of Directors recorded their opinion that all the
Independent Directors are independent of the Management and have fulfilled all the conditions as
specified under the governing provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Further, the Independent Directors have also confirmed that they have complied with the Company's

eode of conduct,

Statement of Board of Directors: The Hoard is of the opinion that all the Independent Directors of
the Company possesses requisite qualifications, experience and expertise in chemicals manufacturing
industry, strategy, auditing, tax and risk advisory services, linancial services, corporate governance, ete.
and that they hold standards of integrity. They have plaved a pivotal role in safeguarding the interests
of all stakeholders. The Company has also issued formal appointment letters to all the Independent
Directors in the manner provided under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued
thereunder. The terms and conditions for appointment of independent director and a sample letter of

appointment issued to the, are posted on the Company's website under the section ‘Invest

tab "Appointment of Non-Executive Independent Director’ at following the link: %
b
hitps: www trioche mproducts.comuploads/nvestor-relations pdfs terms-and-conditog €

appointment-ol-independent-directors-ver(2-23-1743. pdl
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CFHEMN:

The Independent Directors of the Company got included their names in the data bank of Independent
Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act
read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

Familiarization programme for the Independent Directors: The Independent Directors are
familiarized through various programmes on a continuing basis including: (a) Nature of the industry in
which Company operates; (b) business model of the Company; (c) roles, rights, responsibilities of

Independent Directors ete,,

In Compliance with the requirements of SEBI Regulations, familiarization programme along with their
role, rights and responsibilities as Directors, the working of the Company, nature of the industey in
which the Company operates, business model, et it is also display on website of the Company at
following the link:

https: www. triochemproducts. comuploads Investor-relations, pd (s familarization-program-for-
independent-directors-verl2-23-173 1. pdl

Code of Conduct: The Board of Dircctors has approved a Code of Conduct which is applicable to the
Members of the Board and all emplovees in day-to-day business operations of the company. The Code
lays down the standard procedure of business conduct which is expected to be followed by the
Directors and the designated employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating
lo integrity in the workplace, in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders, All the Board
Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code. The Code
has been displayed on website of the Company at following the link:

hitps: www trinchemproducts. com uploads Investor-relations pdfs directors—-senior-management-
personnel-24.pdf

Prevention of insider Trading: Pursuant 1o SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015
as amended, the Company has adopted the Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating,
Monitoring and Reporting of Trading by Designated Persons and their Immediate Relatives along with
Code of Fair Disclosures, The Code of Conduct to Regulate, Monitor and Report Trading by employees
and other connected persons has been displaved on website of the Company at following the link:
hitps: www . iriochemproducts.com/uploads/Investor-relations pdfs code-of-practices—procedures-for-
[air-disclosure-ol-unpublished-price-sensitive-1 71 0. pdf

BOARD MEETINGS HELD DURING THE YEAR:

1)

Board of Director: The Board of Directors met four (4) times during the financial year. The dates on
which the meetings were held are 28" May 2022, 12" August 2022, 12° November 2022, and 11"
February 2023, The maximum gap between any two Board Meetings did not exceed one hundred and
twenty days,

meeting on 29" March 2023, without attendance of non-independent directors anf
Management, to inter alia: All Independent directors were present in mecling,
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Attendance of Directors: Attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings held during the financial vear
ended 31 March 2023 and at [ast AGM:

Name of Director Category Number of meetings | Attendance at the last AGM
(in alphabetical Held | Amended | Held on 26° August 2022,
oreer)
Mr. Girish Kumar Non-Executive, | 4 I Yes
Pungalia | Independent
Mrs, Grace R Deora | Non-Executive | 4 4 Yes
Mr. Shyam Sunder 1 N:_m-Ex_eculivc i [ 4 Yes o
| S S — |
| Mr. Sunil . Non-Executive, | 4 1 Yes
- Jhunjhunwala Independent
Mr. Euj:csh R.Deora | Non-Executive | i : i Yes
Mr. Ramu 5, Deora Non-Executive | 4 I 4 Yes

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:
In aceordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board had the following Three (3) Commitiees as on 317

March 2023, along with their composition. number of meetings and attendance at the meetings are

provided:

1)

2)

Audit Committee: The Audit Committee [unction in accordance with Section 177 of the Act, 2013 read
with the Rules issued thereunder and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and its Charter adopted
by the Board, The term of reference of the Audit Committee. The members of the Audit Commitiee are
financially literate and have experience in financial management. The Audit Committee comprises of
the following directors and Attendance of Direclors at the Committee Meetings held during the financial
vear ended 31 March 2023, No changes have taken place in the members of the Committees from the
date af last Annual Report.

Name Status | Category Meeting
" Held | Atended |
I_Mr Sunil 8. fhunjhunwala | Chairman | Non-Executive - Independent Director | 4 1
Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia = Member | Non-Executive - Independent Director | 4 4
Mrs. Grace R, Deora Member | Director i 4

There have been no instances during the vear when recommendations of the Audit Committee were
nat accepted by the Board.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee: The Nomination and Remuncration Committee (| NRC')
functions in accordance with Section 178 of the Act, Regulation 19 of the Regulations and its Charter
as adopted by the Board. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprising of the following
directors and Attendance of Directors at the Commitiee Meetings held during the financial vear ended

Annual Report.
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Name Status Category Meeting
Held | Attended
Mr. Sunil S. Jhunjhunwala Chairman | Non-Executive - Independent Director | 4 4
Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia | Member | Non-Executive - Independent Director | 4 4
Mrs. Grace R. Deora Member | Director o 4 |4

All the recommendations made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were accepted by the
Board of Directors of the Company.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: The Stakeholders Relation Commuttee (SRC) looks into
various aspects of interest of shareholders. The Committee oversees performance of the Registrar and
Share Transler Agents of the Company relating to investor service and recommends measures for
improvement, The company is having a Stakeholders Relationship Committee comprising of the
following directors and Attendance of Directors at the Committee Meetings held during the financial
vear ended 31 March 2023, No changes have taken place in the members of the Committees from the
date of last Annual Report,

Name Status Category MEEtin_u_ |

Held | Attended |
Mr. Sunil 5. jhunjhunwala | Chairman | Non-Executive - Independent Director | 4 i |
Mr. Girish Kumar Pungalia | Member | Non-Exccutive - Independent Director | 4 | 4
Mrs. Grace R. Deory Member | Director B! | 4

All the recommendations made by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee were acceﬁte&-ij;g
Board of Directors of the Company,

EVALUATION OF PERFORMANCE OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS:

1)

2)

Key Managerial Personnel (‘'KMP'): Mr, Ramu 8. Deora, Director; Mr. Puran |. Parmar, Chief Financial
Officer; anel Ms. Ureca Shirish Shirole, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, are Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(51), and 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulations (1) of Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. There has been no change in the Key
Managerial Personnel (KMP) during the financial vear.

Remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel, and particulars of employees: The
remuneration paid to the Directors is in accordance with the Nomination and Remuneration policy
formulated in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the listing
Regulations (including any statutery modifications(s) or re-enactments(s) thereof for the time being in
Force). The information required under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force) in respect of Directors employee

ol the Company is as follows:

The company director has forgone remuneration. Further no sitting fee has been pai
during the financial year, The particulars of the employees who are covered by the pro
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in Rule 5(2) and rule 5(3) of Companics (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 20014 are;

(a) Emploved throughout the year Nil

(b) Emploved for part of the year Nil

The increase in remuneration of employees other than the Key Managerial Personnel is considerably in
line with the increase in remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel. [tis affirmed that the remuneration
paid to the Dircctors. Key Management Personnel and senior management is as per the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy of the Company.

The number of permanent emplovees on the rolls of company: 10,

In terms of Section 136 of the Act, the reports and accounts are being sent to the members and others
entitled thereto, excluding the information on employees” particulars which is available for inspection
bv the members at the Registered office of the company during business hours on working days of the
company up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. If anv member is interested in inspecting

the same, such member may write to the Chief Financial Officer in advance.

Nomination & Remuneration Policy: The Company has formulated and adopted the Nomination
and Remuneration Policy in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules
issued thereunder and the Listing Regulations. The said Policy of the Company, inter alia, provides
that the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall formulate the criteria for appointment if
Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors on the Board ol Directors on the Board of
Directors of the Company and persons in the Senior Management of the Company, their remuneration
including determination of qualifications. positive attributes, independence of Directors and other
matters as provided under sub-section (3) of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in foree). The Policy is available
on the website of the Company at the following link:

hitps: www.triochemproducts.com uploads Tnvestor-relations, pdfs nomination-and-cemuneration-

policy-26.pdf

Directors Appointment and Remuneration Policy: The Board on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed a Poliey for selection and appointment of
Directors & Senior Management and their remuneration. The Policy of the Company on Directors
appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
independence of Directors and other matters provided under Section 178(3) of the Act and Regulation
19 of the Listing Regulations is available on the website of the Company at the following link:

htips: swww triochemproducts.comiuploads Investor-relations, pdfs appointment-evaluation-of-

board-ol-directors-kmps-and-senior-management-personn-2 7. pdf

Performance Evaluation: The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company empowers the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee 1o formulate a process for evaluating the performance of
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Board, Committees of Board and Individual Directors along with assessing the quality, and quantity
and timelines of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that is
nceessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. An evaluation sheet was
given to cach director wherein certain criteria were set out for which ratings are to be given.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The Annual Return of the Company as on March 31, 2023, in Form MGT-7 in accordance with Section 92(3)
of the Act read with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, is available on the
website of the Company at the following link:

https: www triochemproducts.com/uploads/ nvestor-relations/ pdfs dralt-annual-return-202223-175 Lpdf

By virtue of amendment to Section 92(3} of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to
provide extract of Annual Return (form MGT- 9) as part of the Board's Report, voluntary basis is attached
as “Annexure B” form parts of the Board's Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

In terms of Regulation 15{2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, states that, The Compliance with the corporate governance provisions as
specified in regulation 17, [17A,| 18, 19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 244, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) [and ()] of
sub-regulation (2) of regulation 40 and para C, D and E of Schedule V shall not apply, to listed entities
having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees ten crore and net worth not exceeding rupees
twenty five crore, as on the last dav of the previous financial vear. We wish to inform you that in respect of
our Company as on the last audited balance sheet as at 317 March 2023 paid up equity capital of the
company is Rs.24.50 lakh which is less than ten crores and net worth Rs.11.60 Crore which is less than
rupees twentv-five crore, which is within the limit as prescribed in Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing
Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015,

Hence, due to applicability of Regulation 15(2) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the corporate governance provision are not
applicable to us. Further, when the provision of the said regulation becomes applicable to the Company at
a later date, the same shall be complied with, within six months from the date on which the provisions
become applicable to the Company.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

The provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social Responsibility shall not be applicable to
companies having net worth not exceeding Rs.500 crore or more or turnover not exceeding Rs. 1,000 crore
or net profit not exceeding Rs.5 crore or more during any financial year, as on the last day of the previous
financial year, In this connection, we wish to inform you that in respect of our Company as on the last
audited balance sheet as at 317 March 2023 neither the net worth exceeds Rs. 500 crores or turnover exceeds
Rs1,000 crore or net profit exceeding Rs.3 crore. Hence, the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 regarding
Corporate Social Responsibility would not be applicable.

AUDIT REPORTS AND AUDITORS:
1) Statutory Auditors: Ms. Kanu Doshi Associates LLP, (Firm Registration No. 104746W) \
re-appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term for a period of figg
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vears from the conclusion of the 50" Annual General Mecting till the conclusion of the 55" Annual
General Meeting to be held in the financial year 2027-28.

The requirement for the annual ratification of auditors’ appointment at the AGM has been omitted
pursuant to the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, notified on May 7, 2018,

The auditors have conlirmed their eligibility limits as prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013, and that
they are not disqualified {rom continuing as Auditors of the Company.

The Auditors’ Report for the financial vear ended March 31, 2023, on the financial statements of the
Company lorms a part of this Annual Report. There is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark,
disclaimer, or modified opinion in the Auditors’ Report, which calls for any further comments or

explanations.

Z) Secretarial Auditors: Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Ms.
Ragini Chokshi & Co. (CP No. 1430), Practicing Company Secretaries were appointed to conduct the
secretarial audit of the Company for the financial vear 2022-2023, The Company has received consent
from Mis. Ragini Chokshi & Co. (CP No. 14306), Company Secretaries to act as the auditors for
conducting audit of the Secretarial records for the financial vear ended 317 March 2023,

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form No, MR -3 for the financial vear ended March 31, 2023, is annexed
herewith as “Annexure C” form pans of the Board's Report. There has been no qualification,
reservation, adverse remark, or disclaimer given by the Secretarial Auditors in their Report.

3) Internal Auditors: Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules
made there under (including anv amendment(s), modification(s} or re-cnactment(s) thereofl (or the
time being in force), the Board of Directors of the Company, on recommendation of Audit Committee,
at their meeting held on 26" May 2023 have Re-appointed M/s, Haren Sanghvi & Associates, Chartered
Accountant as Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24, to conduct Internal
Audit of the Company.

4) Cost auditor: The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance the of cost records
under sub-scction (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the products ol the company, Accordingly.
during the vear, maintenance of Cost Records and Cost Audit was not applicable 1o the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
[n line with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, vour Company has
formulated a Policy on Related Party Transactions which is available on the website of the Company at
following link:

hitps: swww. trioche mproducts . comuploads Investor-relations/pd fs related-party-transactio

1734.pdl
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The Policy intends to ensure that proper reporting; approval and disclosure processes are in place for all
transactions between the Company and Related Parties.

All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Commitiee for its review and approval,
Priar Omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained on an annual basis for a financial year, for the
transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive in nature. The statement giving details of all related party
transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus approval Logether with relevant information are placed
betore the Audit Committee for review and updated on quarterly basis.

All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the Business and at Arm's
Length basis. During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any contracts / arrangements
/ transactions with related parties which qualify as material in accordance with the Policy of the Company
on materiality of related party transactions, Hence, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in 'Form AOC-2' is not applicable.

The details of such related party transactions are available in the Notes to the financial stalements section
of this Annual Report,

LOANS, GURANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:

During the vear under review, the Company has made investment as on March 31, 2023, are set out in
Notes to the Financial Statements of the Company. Further, the Company has not given any loans or
corporate guarantee or provide any security covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014

RISK MANAGEMENT:

As per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as part of good Corporate Governance, the company has
long been followed the principle of risk minimization as is the norm in every industry, it has now become
a compulsion. Therefore, the Board members were informed about the risk assessment and minimization
procedures after which the Board formally adopied steps for framing, implementing, and monitoring the
risk management plan for the company. The Audit Committee of the Company has periodically reviewed
the various risk associates with business of the Company. Such review includes risk identification, cvaluation
and mitigation of the risk.

The main objective of this policy is to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to promote a
pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating, and resolving risks associated with the business. In order to
achieve with the key objectives, the policy establishes a structured and disciplined approach to Risk
Management, in order 1o guide decisions on risk related issues. In today's challenging and competitive
environment, strategies for mitigating inherent risks in accomplishing the growth plans of the Company are
imperative. The common risks inter alia are Regulations, competitive, Business risk, Technology
obsolescence, Investments, retention of talent and expansion of facilities. Business risk. inter-alia. further
includes [inancial risk, political risk, fidelity risk, legal risk. As a matter of policy, these risim ..... shessed
and steps as appropriate are taken to mitigate the same.
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Constituting the Risk Management Committee was extended to the wop 500 listed entities on the basis of
the market capitalization, the same is not applicable 1o our Company lor the year ended March 31,2023,

The Company has implemented Risk Management Policy and the Board of Directors has prepared a
comprehensive [ramework of risk management for assessment of risks and to determine the responses o
these risks so as to minimize their adverse impact on the organization. The policy as approved by the Board
of Directors, which is available on the website of the Company at following link:

hitps: www triochemproducts.com uploads Investor-relations pdls/ risk-management-policy-25.pdf

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO:

The information on conversation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and
outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of The Companies {Accounts) Rules,

204, in Form A is annexed herewith “Annexure- D",

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT:
The information on Research and Development in Form B s annexed herewith as “Annexure D”.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has in place Internal Financial Control Systems, commensurate with the nature of its business
and the size, scale, and complexity of its operations to ensure proper recording of financial and operational
information & compliance of various internal controls, statutory compliances, and other regulatory
compliances, The internal control procedures have been planned and designed 1o saleguard and protect
from loss. unauthorized use, or disposition of its assets. All the transactions are probably authorized,
recorded, and reported to the Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting
Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting financial statements. The internal
auditor of the company checks and verifies the internal control and monitors them in accordance with
policy adopted by the company. The company continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and

procedures commensurate with its size and nature of its business.

As require by the Companies Act 2013, vour Company has implemented an Internal Financial Control (IFC)
Framework. Section 134(5)(e) requires the Directors to make an assertion in the Directors Responsibility
Statement that your Company has laid down internal financial controls, which are in exisience, adequate
and operate effectively. Under Section 177(4)(vii), the Audn Committer evaluates the internal financial
contrals and makes a representation to the Board, The purpose ol the IFC is to ensure that policies and
procedures adopted by vour Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business are
implemented, including policies for and the safeguarding its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, accuracy and completeness of accounting records, and timely preparation of reliable financial
information. The [FC implementation required all processes of vour Company to be documented alongside
the cantrols within the process. All processes were satisfactorily tested for both design and effectiveness
during the vear,

The TPL code of conduct and accompanying training, seeks to ensure everyone in yo
understands how to put values into practice, Mandatory training on the Code of Condud

34



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Company's emplovees gain the confidence to make the right decisions and become familiar with the policies
and procedures applicable to their areas of operation, avoid conflicts of interest and report all unethical
and illegal conduct. Additionally, emplovees are required to certify in an annual basis whether there have
been any transactions which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Code of Conduct, Strong oversight and
self-monitoring policies and procedures demonstrate your Company's commitment to the highest
standards of integrity, Your Company has also successfully complemented its [nternal Control Framework
with the test of design and effectiveness of all its processes across the organization as part of meeting the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, to ensure the existence and effectiveness of Internal Financial
Controls.

The Audit Commitiee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's internal control
environment and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating to
strengthening of the Company’s risk management policies and systems. The ultimate objective being, a Zero
Surprise, Risk contralled Organization.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY AND VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism for directors
and emplovees in confirmation with Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulation 22 of SEBI Listing Regulations,
to report concerns about unethical behavior. The Company hereby affirms that no Directoremployee has
been denied access to the Chairman and Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the

vear.

T'he said Policy provides for (a) adequate saleguards against victimization of persons who use the Vigil
Mechanism; and (b) direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board of the Company.
The Company believes in the conducts of the affairs of its constituents by adopting the highest standards of
professionalism, honest, integrity and ethical behavior, in line with the TPI, Code of Conduct (Cade’), All
the stakeholders are encouraged 1o raise their concerns or make disclosures on being aware of any potential
or actual violation of the Code, policies, or the law. The Company maintains a website where detailed
information of the company and its products are provided.

In order to ensure that the activities of the company and its employees are conducted in a fair and
transparent manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical
behavior the company has adopted a vigil mechanism policy, The aim of the policy is to provide adequate
safeguards against victimization of whistle blower who avails of the mechanism and also provide direct
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in appropriate or exceptional cases. Accordingly, "Whistle
Blower Policy' has been formulated with a view to provide a mechanism for the Directors and emplovees
of the Company 1o approach the Ethics Counscllor or the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company. The purpose of this policy is 1o provide a framework 1o promote responsible and secure whistle
blowing. It protects employees willing to raise a concern about serious irregularities within the Company,
This policy is available on the website of the Company at following link:

hitps: www. triochemproducts.com/uploads Investor-relations pdfs vigil-mechanism--whistle-
policy-28.pdf

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE:
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2)

3)

5)

6)

8)

9N

CHENM

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process initiated under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code,
2016 (IBC): During the vear, there has been no initiation of any Corporate Insolvency Resolution
Process under the Insolvency and Bankruptey Code, 2016 (I1BC).

Statement of deviation or variation: During the year, the Company has not raised | made offer by
way of Public Issue, Right Issue, Preferential Issue, Qualified Institutions Macement (QIP) etc. and

therefore i1 s not applicable to the Company

Disclosure with respect to Demat Suspense Account | Unclaimed Suspense Account : The
Company reports that no shares issued pursuant to Public ssue remains Unclaimed hence the Clause
of Disclosure with respect to Demat Suspense Account / Unclaimed Suspense Account is not applicable.

The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of a one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking a loan from Banks or Financial Institutions,
along with the reasons thereof during the F.Y, 2022-23 and the date of Directors’ Report: There
was no instance of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

Significant and Material Order Passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunals: During the vear there
are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which impact the
going concern status and Company's operations in future,

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors: During the vear under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor
the Secretarial Auditor have reported to the Board or Audit Committee, as required under Section 134
{3) (ca) and 145(12} of the Companies Act, 2013, any instances of frauds committed against the
Company by its officers or employees, the details of which would need to be mentioned in this Report.

Listing at stock Exchange: The equity shares of the Company continue to listed and traded in BSE
Limited, The Annual Listing fees for the year financial vear 2022-23 and 2023-24 has been paid to the
stock exchanges. There was no suspension on shares of the Company during the vear.

Dematerialization: Your Company has tied up with National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and
Central Depository Services (India) Lid. (CDSL) to enable the sharcholders to trade and hold share in
an electronic/dematerialized form. The shareholders are advised to take benefits of dematerialization,

10) Awards: Your Company has not received any Award during the financial 2022-23.

11) Financial Statements: As per Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

12) The Financial statements of the Company were not revised.

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing
Regulations”) and applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules issued
thereunder, the Financial Statements of the Company for the linancial year 2020-21 have been prepared
in compliance with applicable Aceounting Standards and approved by the Board of Dirgy
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13) Impairment of Assets & Capital Work-in-Progress: In compliance with Accounting Standard AS-28
relating to “Impairment of Assets”, the company has reviewed the carrying amount of its fixed assets as
at the end of the vear. Based on the strategic plans and such valuation of the fixed assets of the company,

on impairment of assets is envisaged at the balance sheet date.

14) Credit Rating: Credit Rating is not obtained as the same is not required for obtaining the credit

facilities [rom bank.

15) Key Initiatives with respect to Stakeholder Relationship, Customer Relationship, Environment,
Sustainability, Health and Safety: The Company to the maximum cxtent possible under various
programmers initiated by the Company, e.g. (a) The Company assists its vendors with prevention of
wastage and efficient utilization of resources. (b) All the Equipment and Machinery purchased in new
manufacturing plant are ¢lean technology, encrgy efficient, ete., with numerous stakeholders working

across the Company’s different locations and operations, it is difficult to estimate the percentage.

16) The Company has not issued any warrants, debentures, bonds, or any non-convertible
securities.

17) The Company has not brought back its shares, pursuant to the provision of Section 68 of Act and the
Rules made thereunder.

18) The Company has not lailed to implement any corporate action.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SAFETY AND HEALTH:

The Company is committed to ensure a sound Safety, Health and Environment (SHE) performance related
to its activities, products, and services. Your Company had been continuously taking various steps to
develop and adopt Safer Process technologies and unit operations. The Company has been investing in
areas such as Process Automation for increased safety and reduction of human error element, Enhanced
level of training on Process and Behavior based safety, adoption of safe & environmentally friendly
production process, Installation of reactors, Multiple effect evaporator, ete. to reduce the discharge of
effluents, commissioning of Waste Heat recovery systems, and so on to ensure the Reduction, Recovery and
Reuse of effluents & other utilities. Monitoring and periodic review of the designed SHE Management

System are done on a continuous basis,

BANK AND CREDIT FACILITIES:
Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the support from Company's bankers namely
State Bank of India. The Company’s finance position continues to be robust. During the vear under review,
the cash generation from operation reflect a substantial increase. This has been the Company's philosophy
throughout and can be vouched over the years. The Company is zero debt company. The borrowings are
taken for short term requirements.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
Industrial relations have been cordial at the manufacturing units and corporate office of tHe:
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Annexure (A) to Board's Report

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

L.

5. Parameters for Distribution of Dividend

About the Company

Trivchem Products Limited (hereinafier referred to as ‘the Company’ or 'TPL™) is a Company an
existing public limited company incorporated on 17/01/1972 under the provisions of the Indian
Companies Act, 1956 and deemed to exist within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its
registered office at dth Floor, Sambava Chamber, Sir P, M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001. It has been
engaged primarily in the business of manufaciurer and exporter of pharmaceuticals products, APls
and chemicals. The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited ("BSE"),

Objectives of the Policy

2.1. Securities and Exchange Board of India (hereinalter referred 1o as 'SEBI') has. by its Notification
dated July 8, 2016, inserted Regulation 434 in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force. (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Listing Regulation’)

2.2, Regulation 43A of the Listing Regulations requires the Company to formulate a Dividend
Distribution Policy which shall be disclosed in the Annual Report and on the websile of the
Company,

2.3. In view of the above, the Company has framed this Dividend Distribution Policy (hereinafier
referred to as “the Policy') to determine the parameters on the basis of which the Company may

or may not declare dividend,

2.4. The Policy seeks to balance the objectives of rewarding the sharcholders through dividends and
retaining capital to invest in the growth of the Company, while ensuring fairness, sustainability,
and consistency in distributing profit to the sharcholders.

Payment Frequency

The dividend shall, subject to the parameters hereinafter described, be payable annually and shall be
declared at the Annual General Meeting of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Board
of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred (o as “the Board'). The Board may declare interim
dividend during any financial year out of the surplus in the profit and loss account and out of profits
of the financial vear in which the interim dividend is sought to be declared. The Board may
recommend special dividend in vears of exceptional

Declaration of Dividend

It is the intention of the Board of Directors, subject to applicable laws, to pay dividend on the
Company's outstanding Equity Shares. The Company does not have anv class of shares other than
Equity Shares.
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THEM

5.1. Your Company has a track record of steady dividend declaration and payment over its history.
The Board considers the vearly dividend based on the Net Profit After Tax (‘PAT") available for
distribution, In addition, the Board reviews the capital expenditure needs. cash requirements for
investments in capability enhancements and future non organic growth initiatives,

5.2. As in the past, subject to the provisions of the applicable law, the Company’s dividend payout
will be determined based on available financial resources, investment requirements and taking
into account optimal shareholder return. Based on the above, the Company will endeavour to
maintain the steady level of dividend per share over the medium term.

5.3. Circumstances under which the shareholders of the Company may or may not expect

dividend:

The Shareholders may ordinarily expect dividend if the Company has made profits during the

current year, Recommending dividend out of profits of previous financial years or out of retained

earnings shall be at the discretion of the Board, subject to the compliance with the Companies

(Declaration and Payment of Dividend) Rules, 2014, as amended [rom time to time. The Board

may not recommend a dividend if:

5.3.1. Proposed expansion plans require higher allocation of capital: or

5.3.2. Significantly higher working capital requirements adversely impact free cash flow; or

5.3.3. The Company undertakes any acquisitions or investments including in joint ventures,
new product launches, ete., requiring significant capital outflow; or

5.3.4. In case of proposal for buyback of shares; or

5.3.5. Inthe event of inadequacy of profits,

5.3.6. If the Board proposes not to distribute profit, the grounds thereof and information on
utilisation of undistributed profit, if any, shall be disclosed 1o the sharcholders in the
Annual Report of the Company.

5.4. Financial Parameters for declaring dividend:

The Board shall consider the following financial parameters while declaring dividend:

5.4.1. the Company’s Financial Results of operations and earnings.

5.4.2, working capital requirements for the operations and growth of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

5.4.3. quantum of profits and liquidity position;

5.4.4. future fund requirements, including for brand building, business acquisitions, business
expansion, modernisation of existing business;

5.4.5. level of debt:

5.4.6. providing for unforeseen events and contingencies:

5.4.7. any other financial factor as the Board may deem fit

5.5. Internal and External Factors for declaring dividend:
The Board may consider the following internal and external factors while declaring dividend:
5.5.1. Internal Factors:
5.5.1.1.  the level of dividends paid historically,
5.5.1.2.  contractual restrictions and financing agreement covenants;
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5.5.1.3.  likelihood of erystallisation of contingent liabilities, if any.

5.5.2. External Factors:
5.5.2.1. general business conditions, risk and uncertainties;
5.5.2.2.  industry outlook and business cycles for underlying businesses:
5.5.2.3.  prevailing economic, competitive and regulatory environment;
5.5.2.4.  tax law and the Company's taxpaver status:
5.5.2.5.  capital market.

This is not intended to be an all-inclusive list, but rather a representative list of factors which
may be considered while declaring dividend.

5.6. Manner in which the retained earnings shall be utilised:
Retained ¢arnings are the sum of the Company's profits after dividend pavments, since the
Company's inception. The retained earnings of the Company will be utilised in one or more of
the following manner:
5.6.1. for expansion and growth of business:
5.6.2. [or contributing towards the fixed as well as working capital needs of the Company;
5.6.3. major repairs and maintenance, including replacement of old assets which have become
ohsolete,
5.6.4. renovation'modernisation for improving working efficiency of plants and equipment’s
and for capacity enhancements:
5.6.5. to make the Company self dependent of finance from external sources;
5.6.6. for redemption of loans and debentures (if any);
5.6.7. for upgradation of technical knowhow:
5.6.8. non organic growth initiatives, including acquisition of brands businesses;
5.6.9. for issuing fully paid-up bonus shares to the Shareholders.

5.7. Dividend Range:

5.8. As in the past. subject to the provisions of applicable laws, the Company’s dividend payout will
be determined based on availability of financial resources, investment requirements and also
take into account optimal sharcholder return. The Company would endeavour to target a total
dividend payout ratio in the range of 30% o 50% of the Annual Standalone PAT of the Company.

6. Review of Policy
This Policy has been adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company and the Board may review
and amend the Policy from time to time, pursuant to any change in law or otherwise.

7. Disclosures
TPL shall disclose the Dividend Distribution Policy in the Board's Report forming part of the Annual
Report. This Policy shall also be disclosed on  the website of the Co e Al
www tricchemproducts.com. Any changes in the Policy, along with the rationale for t ¢
also be disclosed in the Annual Report and on the website of the Company,
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8. Amendments to the Policy
The Company is committed to continuously reviewing and updating our policies and procedures.
Therefore, this policy is subject 10 modification. Any amendment(s) of any provision of this policy
shall be carried out by the persons authorised by the Board in this regard.
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Annual Report 2022 - 2023 Annexure (B) to Board's Report
FORM NOL.MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023

[Purswant 1o Section 92(3) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companics (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
| REGISTRATION AND OTHER DEALLS

i CIN L24249MET19T2IA A 5544
ii Registration Date 17 1] 1972
iii Name of the Company Frivechem Produces Limited

iv Category of the Company

1 Public Company Yes
Sub Category of the Company
9 Comprny having share capital Yy
v Address of the Registered Office and Contact Details
1 Company Name Triochem Products Limited
£ Address ith Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir, P M. Resul, Fon
3 Town / City Mumhbai
i State Maharashira
5 Pin Cale A00001
0 Countey Name Ernelice
T Country Code [Nir
A Telephene with ST10 Area Code Number ({122} 226063150
9 Fax Number {022y 220240657
10 Email Adelress b e pstior (s trivichempruducts goan
11 Wehsiie, if any Ao s heppreduits c
12 Name of the Police Station having jurisdiction where the Registered Office s situated M.AL Marge, Police Station
vi Whether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchanges(s) Ve
Detadls of the Stock Exchanpes where shares are listed:
SEoMos Stock Exchanges(s) Stk Code(s)
I BSE Limited {Bombay Stsck Exchange Limited) S12101
vii Name and Address of Registrar & Transfer Agent (RTA)
1 RTA Mis. Link Intime Inelis Privite Limited
2 Address =100, 247 Park, LB, 5. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai - 400083
3 Town / Ciry Mumbaj
4 Slate Maharashtra
5 Pin Coxle A0S
B Country MNamge Inclia
T Counery Code [ND
8 Telephone with STD Arca Code Number (XL 44186270
0 Fax Number (EEy 49 THA0G0
1 Emnail Address i1 heitpre b @0 inking

11 Website, if any s brkintime o i)
1 PRINCIPAL BLUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business contributing 10% or more of the totl wenover of the Company shall be staged -
sk Mame and Description of main Prodicts | Services NIC Code of the % tor total rnover of
M, Prowluct / Services the company

1 Manulactunng of chemical substances wsed in the manufacring of pharmaceuncals ELFR] |
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCIL 31, 2023
[Pursuant to Scetion 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies {(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
1 PARTICULARS OF HOLIMNG, SUBSIDARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
Nit - Not applicable
IV SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as Percemage of Total Equity)

& Category-wise Shareholding

Catcgory of Sharcholders Mo, of Shares hold at the beginning of the Moo of Shares hold a1 the end of the year (s % of
year (As on (FL04 2042) om A1 A0 Change
Demat  Physical  Total  %oltoll  Demat  Phwsicl  Towl %ol during the
shares shares year

A Promoters Sharcholding

1 Indian
g Individual - Hindu [.638, 144} i LGH 190 L] | (8, 190 0 1Gs T BH.O49 FRE L
I nelivided Family
b Centeal Government i { 1] XL 0 M i (.00 RE
¢ State Government i L] ( (1AM} 1] 1] 1} (LI (3,1}
il Boddies Corporate ] 0 i NEH i 0] 1 .00 L
¢ lank | [l {0 7] il 0,14} 0 i i {0 3,1%)
£ any Cther (Specify) 0 0 il (.00 0 0 i 110K LY
Suls Total (A} 1) 1,68, 194 0 L6190 G864 168190 0 LOS1M 6E649 AN
2 TForeign
o WERL Inchividuaks t} i U IEEE ] 0 L VY 13,4
by Crher Tnchividuals { 1] i 13,043 i i 1] {100 (3.0
 Hodlics Corporate {l i f 13,1} 0 I it LAY ERLT
i Bank / Fl i 0 0 0.0 0 0 ) 0.0 BRLA]
¢ Any Other :ﬁper_":l'}'} 0 0 0 0.0} 0 ] L] (10D (01K}
Suls Total (AN 2) U U i XL ] 1] 1 {100 (1,4
Tontal Shareholding of 1 68, 190 0 LOS190  GHO4Y 168190 0 LGR 190 68649 0,00

Promoters and Promoter
Group (A)={A}N1) +{AN2)

B Public Sharcholding

1 [ostituntions

1 Muotuad Funds | LTI ] ] ] ERLY L] ] 0 (1.0} AN
by Bank ¢ Fl ] il ] 1K H L { [REH (LK)
¢ Central Government ] ] i LEEL ] ] 1] i AV LA
il State Governmen) i 0 [ LA 1] i il (1.0} (L0
e Venture Capital Funeds i i [ 114K ] i i EREY (0K
f Insurance Companics f fl [ (k01 ] 1] i .04 (Lo
g Flls ] i] 0 LX) i ] ] [ELH Y]
h Foreign Venture Capital i i 4 {00 i ] i IRET LN
Investors
i Provident Funds Pension M i 1] {)H i) ] i (1.4} HAE]
Funds
| Anv Other {spt'rif'g.'] (i 1] ) O (1 {1 0 (.01 (108
Sulby Total (1) N i 0 1.0} il il i (LK i1,

g1y dy Os
=~ '
R -~

_
] 4
S| Mumbai |8
A
%
-
B B
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023
[Pursvant 1o Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Maoagement and Administration) Rules, 2014

Caregnry of Sharcholders No. ol Shares hold at the beginning of the  No- of Shares hold at the end of the vear (As %ol
vear {As on 01.04.2022) on 31.03%,2023%) Change
Demat  Physical  Towl  %oftorl  Demat  Physieal  Total % oftow  duringthe
shares shares yeaE
2 Non-Institulions
a Bodies Corporate
| Inihan A6,000 250 A0 250 14,7596 A6, (0} 230 M. 250 147 (.00
i Lhverscas [ { ( QALY i i {l IRKET] LYY
b Incivicluat
i Individual Sharchelders 1A7H 14850 28560 11,657 15,710 14,850 24 5600 11.657 [{RLH]
hedeling noeminad share
capital up to | lakh
il Endividusl Shareholders 12000 0 1200 1598 12.04K) ] 12000 1894 (.60
holding nominal share
capital in excess of 1 lakh
€ Anv Other (speaily)
i Mon-resident India 0 0 0 .00 fl 0 0 .03 .00
i Cwerseas Corporate Bodies 1 M 0 0100 ] ] ] (14K} (00
il Foreign Nationals 1 M i (100 i { i (3,0} .10
iv NBFCs Begistered with REL 0 n o (.00 a q 0 (14K} 000
v Trust ] ] L [RAY] {l t it (3.4 [iRNH
vl Foreign Bodics i i i RN K] {l {l i (1K1 (1000
sub Total (B)(2) 1710 15000 ThENE 41,351 GILTI0 U500 TARI0 31351 (.00
Total Public Shareholding GLT 15,100 ThE10 31331 617100 15,146 Th.AI0 51.351 0.00
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)H2)
€ Share beld by Cuspodians .00 .00 XL 0.0 L) .00 .00 (.06 000
for GIHs & ADRs
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 219000 150100 24%000 MKROOO 229900 15 100 245000 [UIRET] (.00
B Sharcholding of Promoters
S sharcholder's Name sharcholding at the beginning of the vear Sharcholding at the end ol the year (As on % af
Mo, iAs om (104 2022) 31.05.2023) Change in
Nioof %of % of Sharcs PMedged Nir of ool % of Shares Pledged | sharcholdin
Shares il encumbered o ol Shares total  encumbered 1o torl & during
shares shares® shares shures* the year
1 Mr. Hajosh B Deora 30,000 F4.6%4 ] A Teh9a i .0}
2 Mrs. Grace R, Peora 36,0000 F46049 1 000 14699 {1 IRLY]
3 Mr Hamu § Deora 34,500 102 1 300 10 i (K1
4 Mr. Rajiv B Deom 3,270 130ER 1] FLETD 15988 i (4%
5 Ramu M Deora LT 274200 11191 ¥ 2740 11191 (1 (1.0
Total LGB 19 GE.O49 I 1681490 68649 i (.04
Moes;

I The term “encumbrance” has the same meaning as assigned o it in Regulation 28(3) of the SERI (Substantial Acepulsition of Shares and

Takerwvers) Hegulations, 2011
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023
[Pursnant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

€ Change in Promoters’ Sharcholding

5L Sharcholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Sharcholding during the vear Ficason
No, (01042022 1o 31 05,2023)
No. of Shares % of total Shares of Mo.of Shares % of wial Shares of the
the company company
| Mr. Rajesh . Deora Movement
A the heginning of the vear 6 100 14,644 A, LK) Pi604  during the
Al the end ol the year A (K 14694 36,14 14 604 vear-Nil
2 Mrs. Grace R Deora Mawement
At the beginning of the vear 36,0600 14084 i, 10} 14694 during the
At the end of the year 30K 14,0694 30, 00 14 694 Year- N
3 Mr. Rajiv H. Deara Movement
AL the beginning of the year 34,270 15,56 44,270 13988 during the
Al the end of the year 34,270 13,08 34,270 14955 vear - Nil
1 Mr. Hamu 8. eora Muvement
At the heginning of the vear 44,5000 140082 44,500 14082 during the
At the end of the vear 44,500 14,082 34,500 14,082 year - Nl
5 Ramu M Deora HUF Movement
AL the beginaing of the year 27 A2 11192 27420 11,192 during the
Al the end of the vear 27420 11.192 27420 11,192 vear - Nil
Noles:
I e of increase | decrease has been considered as the date on which beneficiary position was provided by the Depositories to the
Company.

D Shareholding pattern of top ten sharcholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

81 Shareholder's Name Sharcholding Cumulative Shareholding during the year
No. No. of Shares % of total Shares of No.of Shares % of total Shares of the
the company cenmpany
1 G Amprhay 120K AR 12,0000 4808
Fharmaceuticals Pvi Lud
2 Tricchem Laboratories Py 12,060 4.HuA 12,000 A-HH
Ltd
4 Ambernath Plaste ERELA 4,898 1.2 (U} 4 HOH
Paickaging Pro Ld
4 Ramesh Rajaram Patil 120000 EH9E 12000 1.598
5 Rajkumnar Shriniwas Bajoria T 28930 7,200 2939
f Vimla 5, Sharma 2500 1.0320 250K (REEY
7 Saviin Nareshchandrea Jain 2500 1020 250K L0
# Snchprabha Agaraal 2,500 LOZ0 2,50 |20
9 M L Rungta HUF 2000 (L H1G 2N LRIG
1 Verma Shyam Sunder 1800 {1,735 1,801 (1,735
Mirles:

| The shares of the Company are ot waded 1 daily basis and henee date wise increase - decrease in sharcholding s not indicted
Sharcholding is consolidated based on PAN of the Sharchaolder
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023
[Pursuant to Section 42(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Kule 12{1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2004]
E Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

51 sharcholder's Name Sharcholding at the beginning of the vear Cumudative Shareholding during the vear Reson
No (01.04.2022 1o 5103 2024)
o of Shares % of total Shares of Moo of Shares % of total Shares of the
the company Oty
Dircctors
I Mr Bamu 5. Deora * Maovement
At the beginning of the vear 34,5000 14082 34,500 14.082  during the
An the end of the vear 4,500 4,042 14, 50K 14,082 vear- Nil
2 Mrs. Grace B Deora Mowement
Ar the begioming of the year Fi (W0 14,654 30,0060 14,694 luring the
Al the et of the vear 46,000 1'h.6%4 46,064 1i69q  year - Nil
4 Mr. Rajesh R Deora Movement
At the beginning of the vear i, 0000 IERE] 3, TH0) 14004 during the
M the end of the vear 36,000 14694 §6,000 14.694 vear-Nil
t Mr. Shyam 5, Sharma Movement
At the beginning of the vear - - . . during the
Arthe end of the vear - . : - dear-Nil
5 Mr. Sunid 5, fhunjhunsala Movement
A the heginning of the vear - - : i during the
At the end of the vear - - - - veear - Nil
O Mr, Girish Kumar Pungalia Mivement
Al the beginning of the vear - . . . during the
A the enel of the vear - - - . year-Nil

Key Managerial Personnel

1 Mr. Hamu 8. Deora ® Movement
At the heginning of the year 34, 50 14 0H2 34,500 1ao@2  dunng the
AL the end of the year 34,500} 14 182 44,500 Li g2 year-Nil

2 Mr Puran |. Parmar Movement
Al the beginning of the vear - . . . during the
At the end of the vear . . 5 E vear - Nil

5 Ms. Ureca Shirish Shirole Movement
Al the beginning of the vear . . . - during the
A the end of the vear - : E : year - Nil

Miies:

| * M Ramu 8 Deorn, Direcor has been included in the list of Dircctors as well as KMP
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2023

| Pursuant to Scction 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

v INDEHTEDNESS

Indlebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding | acerued but not duee for payment

Ameountin Rs,

Secured Loans
(Excluding deposits)

Unsecured Loans

[he passats Tonal Indehiness

Indehtedness at the beginning of the financal year {As on 01.04.2022
i Principal Amoum 7

il Interest due but not paid :

il Interest agerued but not due -

Total (i +ii +iii) 7 7
Change in Indebtedness during the fisancial vear

i Adedition 3911 34911
it Heduction (repayment) 4001 3001
Ner Change I 10
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year (As on 31.03,.2023)

i Principal Amount L7 17
i Imterest due but not paid

iii  Interest accrucd but not due - -
Total (i+ii+iii} 17 - 17

¥Vl REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Amaount in Hs

sk Particulars of Remuneralion (A} Managing Direciors, Whole-
Wi, timie Directors and /o Manager

() Cther Dircctors (€} Bey Managerial Personmel

CEO 5 L

1 Gross Salury {excluding Commission)
{a) Salarv as per provisions contained in
section 171} of the Income-u Act,
14901
it Vatue of perquisites us 17(2) of the
Income-tax Act. 1961
{¢) Profit in lew of salary ws 17(2) of the
Imcome-tax Act, 1961

$ Stock Optiens

3 S Equity

4 Commission
- as % oof profit
- eithers, spedfy

5 Cithers - Emplover contribution 1o
provident amd other funds
Total (A)

Cetling as per the Companics Act. 2013

- 2 40,0000 -

2,490,000 -

VII  PENALTIES | PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNINNG OF OFFENCES (under the Companies Act, 2013)

Nopenalies - punishment / compounding of olfences were under Companies Act, 20§83

O behall of the Board of Direclors

7y

Grace | Deora
Errector

Mumbal, 26th May, 2023 DN 00312080
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Hamu 8, Dot
Director
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Annexure (C) to Board's R&ert

CUde-ddd 114

A Ragini Chokshi & Co. e i

Company Secretaries

34, Kamer Buiiding. 5th Fioor, 38 Cawasf Patel Street, Forl, Mumbaf - 400 001
E-mail - ragini c@redifimadl com ! mail@icsragimchokshi com
wah: csraginichokshicom

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REFPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31# MARCH 2023

[Prrsuant to Section 204(1) of the Compantes Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

TRIOCHEM FRODUCTS LIMITED

48 Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road
Fort Mumbai- 400 001.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by TriochemProducts
Limited(CIN:L24249MH1972PLC015544) (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company
has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year 1% April, 2022 to 31%
March, 2023 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mec hanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

=y L
) .

g Mumabai _?.:
< <
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We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by Triochem Products Limited("the Company”) for the
audit period covering the Financial Year 1% April, 2022 to 315 March, 2023 according
to the provisions of:

(1)

(1)

(i)

(iv)

vl

The Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made
thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed
thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulation made

there under to the extent of Exchange Commercial Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act):

a.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011

The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the
Company during the audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014(Not applicable to the Company during the
audit period);

The Securiies and Exchange Board of India (Issuc and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; ;(Not Applicable as the
Company has not issued any debt securities during the Audit Period)
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g. The secarities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the companies act and
dealing with client. (Not applicable as the Company is nct registered as
Regisrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agent during the financial year
under review);

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable as the Company has not delisted its
equity shares from any stock exchange during the period under review)

i. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities)
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable as the Company has not bought back
any of its securities during the period under review)

j. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories & Participants)
Regulations, 2018 (To the extent applicable);

k. The Securiies and Exchange Board of India{ Investor Protecton and
Education Fund) Regulations, 2009;

We have relied on the representation made by the Companyv and s Officers for
systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other
applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company.

We are of the opinion that the management has complied with the following laws
specifically applicable to the Company:

1. Factroies Act, 1944

2. Drugs and Cosmetics Acl 1940

3. The Pharmacy Act 19484, Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution)Act, 1981
5. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollulion}Act, 1974

6. Minimum Wages Act, 1948

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(a) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligation and
Disclsoure Requirements)Regulations 2015 and the Listing Agreements
entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above.
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We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There
were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in the compliance with the provision of the
Act,

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, and the
same were sent at least seven days in advance, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least Seven days before the date of Meeting, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting,.

We further report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable Financial laws
like Direct & Indirect tax laws, Service tax has not been reviewed in this audit since
the same has been subject to review by the statutory financial audit and other
designated professionals.

As per the minutes of the Board duly recorded and signed by Chairman, the
decisions of the Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been
recorded.

We further report that there are adequatle systems and processes in the company
commensurate with size and operatons of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulation and guidelines.

We Ffurther report that during the audit period, there were no specific
events/actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affair in pursuance of of
the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guideline etc.

For RaginiChokshi& Co.
{(Company Secretaries)

Mnkm:ud]m

(Partner)

C.P. No. 9031

Membership NoJ11872
UDIN: A011872E000386444

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26/05/2023
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e UdEedena 1120

ﬂs Ragini Chokshi & Co. 5988 1194

To,

Company Secretaries

34, Kamer Bulidirig, Sth Floor, 38 Cawasji Patel Streel, Fort, Mumiai - 400 001
E-mall . rRginl cilirediffmali com | maifdesraginichokshi com
wiely: csraginichokshi.com

ANNEXURE TO SECRETARIAL AUDIT REFORT

The Members,

TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

4t Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road
Fort Mumbai- 400 001.

COur report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

L3

The maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the
Management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these Secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our apinion.

We have not verified the correcess and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have oblained the Management representation about
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.
The compliance of the provision of Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of Management Our

examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
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6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability

of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the

Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For RaginiChokshi& Co.
(Company Secretaries)

Makarand Patwardhan
{Partner)

C.P. No. 9031
Membership No.11872
UDIN: A011872E000386444

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26/05/2023
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Triochem Products Limited

Annual Report 2022 - 2023 Annexure (D) to Board's Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABRSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHNAGE EXRNINGS AND OUTGO
[Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounis) Rules, 2014
A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
a Energy conservations measures taken
The monulscturing units of the Company have comtinued their efforss o reduce the énetgy consumption. Specific eneriy
comsumption and absolute unit's consamption ane tracked on a real time basis at individual factory Block Tevel and consalidated at
Supply Chain Level. This is being done with the help of Energy Management System at plant,
Some of the key measures taken in all the plants are as below:
| Work done in improvement in shaft mechanics by installation of energy efficiem screw compressar,
2 Gonventional light replacement plan was implemented with LED Light in the arca of flood light and plint with glass fitting.
A Condensste recovery svstems 1o reuse witer for enhuncement of boiler efficiency and reduce water consumption,
4 Presence sensors and motion sensors uscid in cabins
5 Pressure based pumping system used for urilities
fr Arresting air leakage and optimization of air pressure network
7 By controbling process parameters and changing process pipe line system.
b Uiilising alternate sources of cnergy
| Sular energy: il
2 Wind energy: Nil
¢ The capital invesiment on energy conservation equipment
Additional investments and proposals being implemented for Energy: Rs.Nil
The Company s engaged in the continuous review of energy costs, reduction i energy generation cost through improved
nperational and maintenance practices. We have been able to maintain the power factor near of unity ane thereby availing the
rebate on electricity charges
d Impact of above measures on consumption of energy
Tmpact of the above measure for the reduction of energy consumption and consequent impact on the cost of production of the
s, it is difficull 1o assess the definme mpact of the measure as the wial eneegy cost foems 2 small constituent of the overad]
production costs,
¢ Power & fuel consumption
5l Taniculurs 2022 <2024 20212022
Nk, Amount in Rs, Amourt in s,

1 Electricity

Purchise - Unils 2,30, 086 188 670
Purchise - Amount 27 88 104 25 29574
Rate /1t 12,32 12,35

O Generation through *
* Not Applicable, Since the Company does not have any Diesel Generator or Steam Turhine Generator

2

Furnace il

Purchase - Litre -
Purchase - Amount

Kare ¢ Litre

L

Consumption per unit of products® Stanedards

Eleetneny

Rulk Drug, APls - - Mot Applicable
Furnace Uil

Bulk Drug. APIs - . Not Applicable
Kedson [or variation ©*

Muinbai

/

wee manufaciure a large bulk drugs having different energy requirements,
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Annual Report 2022 - 2023 Annexure (D) to Board's Report
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHNAGE FXRNINGS AND OUTGO

|Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

B TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

a The efforts made by the Company towards technology absorption

The fieus of Rescarch & Technology function continues (o be in building technologleal self-reliance by promoting in house
rescarch, innovition and creativity to design, develop and upgrade its products pipeling continuously to suppon achieving shor,
mediom and longterm business goals of the Company. The entire products pontfolio is based on inhouse technology developed
by internal scientists without support (rom external partners in the form of wechnology, collaborationdicensing. The nature of
activitics carried out by Research & Technology functional the Company are as follows:

I Upgracation of existing products with value added features to creawe product differentiation to retain market share,

2 Continuous value generation through formulation re-engineering, sourcing efficieney, process optimization, new raw materal
search, new manufacturing techniques, vendor collaboration to enhance profitability

3 Support sustainability initatives of the company by undertaking joinl projects with plant (o reduce cvele time, encrgy
constmplion, waker consumprion and wasie generation,

4 Development of laboratory simulation techniques to support products validation under different geographical climate and
usage practices.

5 Technical service and support related to customers for procduct seale up and standardization on customer lines,

6 Development of test methods for Plant QU that help speed up incoming raw material testing and approval

7 Continues henchmarking of procucts against nationalinternational competition.

B Support technical eapability building across organtzation through in-house seminars, technical training, cle

9 Support in terms of technological due diligence t Rulfil company's growth strategy through acquisition.
b The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product dmrclnpm::nl or import substitution

1 Fresh water consumption reduced and ETP load minimized
2 Emission In the air is negligible and maintains all emission parameters.

4 Reduce fresh water consumption

c In case of imported technology (import during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year)
1 Not Applicihle

d The expenditure incurred on Research and Development

Sl Particulars 2022 - 2023 2021 - X122
M, Amuount in Rs. Amcunt in Rs.
1 Capital - -
2 Becurning
4 Total “ =
G FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Sl Particulars 2022 - 2023 2021 - 2022
Mo Amount 1o Bs. Amount in Rs.

| Farning - Expon -
2 Uhugn : Impor - 5.49,74.550
5 Dutgo ; Bank Charges - 4,000

(i behalt of Board of Thirectors

/ﬂﬂ_‘_f\lh QI‘ ——

Grace R Do Hamu 8. DTori
Director Director
DN (031 2080 NIN: ﬂg‘-_)

Mumibai, 26th May, 2023
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Mumbai Address © 203, The Summit, Hanuman Road,
Kanu D nshi Assu C iatgs LLP Western Express Highway, \ile Parle (E), Mumbai - 400 057

T 022-2615 0100
Chartered Accountants
Pune Acoress ; 109, Sohrab Hall, 21 Sassoon Road,
Cpp. Jehangr Hospital, Pung- 411001 « T : 020 4806 7177
E . info@kdg.co.ne W, www.kdg.coin

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

To the Members of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheel as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements,
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{hereinafter referred to as “the  Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view, in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, and its net loss including other comprehensive loss, changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Cur responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matiers that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current periocd. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We
have determined that there are no key audit matters te communicate in our report.

Other Information

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditors' report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In mnnectlﬂn wn.h our audit of the Financial Statements, our res[;:m:rrmlt:ull'ﬂ_..I is tm read the uther
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to be materally misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, the financial performance, the changes
in equity and the cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the  Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Management and the Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic aliternative but to do sa.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducied in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal controi.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies us the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
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+ Conciude on the appropriaieness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's repor to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters thal were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors' Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order’) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
to the extent applicable

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid Financial Staternents.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
the aforesaid Financial Staterments have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the Financial Statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Account) Rules, 2014,

e} On the basis of the written representations received fmm e directors as on March
31, 2023 and taken on record by the Board of Diracrm e of the directors is

(.f'_e,'/ﬁ‘ "f‘_x
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disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial contrels over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Repori in “Annexure B™.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(18) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our apinion and
to the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its  Financial Statements (Refer Note, 23(a) to the Ind As Financial
Statements).

i. The Company did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivatives contracts.

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the company during the year ended March 31,
2023.

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatscever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of
the Company or

+ provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

» directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of
the Funding Party or

« provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and
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that the representations under subclause (d) (i} and (d) (il) contain any material

mis-statement.

v. The company has not paid any dividend during the year.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 104746WM100096

A

Kunal Vakharia

Partner

Membership no. 148916
UDIN, 23148916BGUSYVB452

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26" May, 2023
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph 1 of ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our
Report of even date on the accounts of TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED for the year ended
March 31, 2023

i (a) (A) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including
guantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any Intangible assets.

{b) The fixed assets of the company are physically verified by the Management
according to a phased programme designed to cover all the ilems over a period of
three years, which, in our opinion, is reascnable having regard to the size of the
company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the prograrmme, a portion of the
fived assets has been physically verified by the management during the year and
discrepancies noticed between the book records and the physical inventories were
net material and have been properly dealt with in the accounts.

{c} According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has not revalued its
Property, plant and equipment or Intangible assets or both during the year.

(e) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for halding any benami property under the Prohibition
of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

i, (a) During the yvear, the inventaries have been physically verified by the management.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage
as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification of inventories and the book records that were 10% or more in the
aggregate for each ciass of inventary.

(b} According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no working capital availed by the
company. Accordingly, clause 3{ii}(b) of the Order is not applicable.

ii.  According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments, provided
guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Hence sub clauses {a) o (f) of clause
3iii} are not applicable to the Company.

iv, According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not given any loans, or
provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Company has not given any loans or provided any guarantee or
security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Further, the
company has complied with provisions of Section 186
respect of investments made during the year.
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v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under o the extent
notified and therefore clause 3(v) is not applicable

wi. The Central Government has riot prescribed maintenance of cost recards for the company
under sub Section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act. 2013 for any of the products
of the Company. Therefore, clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

vii. {a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriale authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Customs Duty, Cess, Goods & Service Tax and any other material statutory dues
applicabie to it and there were no arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the records of the Company, there are no dues of GST, Income Tax,
Sales Tax and Excise Duty which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute except disclosed below

The disputed amount that have not been deposited in respect of Income Tay is as under:

Sr. | Name of the Nature of the dues Forum where the dues| Rs. In Lakhs
MNo.  Statute is pending
1. |Income tax | Income tax Income Tax Appellate | 3.21

Act, 1961 Tribunal

(AY. 1993-1894)

Total | 3:21

vili.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in
tax assessments under the Income tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

ix. {a) According to the records of the Company examined by us and information and
explanation given to us, the company has not taken any loan or borrowing from banks,
government. financial institution and has not issued debentures during the year.

(b} Accarding to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
Company has not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3 (ix) (c ) of the Order
is not applicable.

{d) According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised an
short term basis have been utilised for long term purposes. Accordingly, clause
3ix){d) of the Order is not applicable.

(e} According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the Company
does not have any subsidiary. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e} of the Order is not
applicable. -
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(f} According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we repart that the Company
does not have any subsidiary. Accordingly, clause 3(ix){f) of the Order is not
applicable.

X (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of public issue/ further offer
{including debt instruments) and through term leans during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3 (x)(a) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

{b} According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examinations of the records of the Company. the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi. (a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanation given
by the management, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed
or reported during the year.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under Section
143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the
Central Government.

(c) There were no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xi)(c)of the Order is not applicable.

i, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the nature
of the activities of the company does not attract any special statue applicable to Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable to the company.

xii.  According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with Sec 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

Xiv. {a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in

aur opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b} We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the
period under audit.

XV In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based
an our examination of the records of the Company, the company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

X, {a) The company is not required to be registered under Sec 45-14 of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(b} The company is not required to be registered under Sec 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company. -
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{c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
is made by the Reserve Bank of India, Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi){c} of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of
audit, the Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

xvii.  The Company has incurred cash losses in the current year amounting to Rs, 106,49 lakhs
and did nol incur cash loses in the immediately preceding financial year.

xvii. ~ There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3 (xviil) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and en the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of
financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all
liabilities falling due within a pericd of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

XX.  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, section 135
{5) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company. Accordingly, clauses
3(xx){a) and 3{xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration No: 104748WAN100086

Kor

Kunal Vakharia

Partner

Membership No; 148918
UDIN: 23148916BGUSYVE452

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26" May, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements’ section
of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal financial contrels over financial reporting of TRIOCHEM
PRODUCTS LIMITED (“the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of
the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on cur audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasconable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
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accepied accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of  Financial Statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company's assets that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intermal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the Internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may detericrate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31* March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL.

For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. No. 104748WMAN100096

s

Kunal Vakharia

Partner

Membership no. 148916
UDIN: 23148816BGUSYWE452

Place: Mumbai
Date: 26™ May, 2023

Continuation Sheet



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: L24249MH1972PLO0T5544)
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

[Rs. in Lakhs]
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
{10 Mon - Current Asscls
i w ) Property, plant and equipment 3 4. 4 80102
{ b} Investment propery 1 0.5 .35
{ ¢y Financial asscls
{1} Non current investments 5 041 RH z
(it} (ither financial assets 6 T oAb .32
i d ) Delerned tx Assels v 2783 .
{ ¢ ) Other non - current @y 1sscls H . 3415
{ 11 ther non - currend assets 0 128 (.75
Total Non- Curreni Assets 1,055.33 118.59
( 2} Current Asscls
{a) Inventories 10 5.0 530
{ b} Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 11 9591 1.180.92
(i1 Other linancial assets 12 202 0,43
{ ¢} Other ta assets 13 700 .80
(o} Other eurrent assels 14 10 10.97
Total Current Asseis 128.23 1,204.42
TOTAL ASSETS 1,183.56 1.333.01
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{ @) Fruity share capital 15 2450 24.50
{ by Uther coguity 16 1.135.22 1,2800.10
Total Equity 1,159.72 150166
LIABILITIES
1) Non Curren Lighilitics
{a) Delerred t labilities (Net) 17 T
Tertal Non- Current Liabilities . .08
{2} Cuerent Lishilities
{a) Financial Habilitics
(1) Borrowings 14 (00 0,1%)
iy Trade pavables 19 18.49 1710
{ by nher financial Liabilities 20 . (.24
(o) Uiher current liahilities 21 (.63 0,044
{ ¢l 1 Provisions 22 472 320
Total Currcmt Liabilities 23.84 21.27
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1.185.56 1,333.01
Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the finandal statements
As per our report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP For and on behalfl of Board of Directors I‘I -')
Chartered Acconntants — L C
Firm Registration No.: 104 746W/W 100094 Wt e

Ko

Grace H. Dreora

Puran Parmar

Director (DIN: (03 12080) Chief Financial Officer
Kunal Yakharia
Partner e i
Membership No.: 148916 = p .
UPIN: 23\ LEg ) (R G U Ramu §. Deora 7 shirish Shirole

Mace: Mumbai
Dated: 20th May, 2023

i

Director (DIN: B0312309) [ ,ff

i
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: 1.24249MHI972PLCOTS544)
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
[Rs. in Lakhs]

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1 Hevenue from operations 21 . BEZ 10
I Oiher income 25 27.7% 348
Il Total Income (1411) 2775 038.0a
IV Expenses
Cost of material consumed 20 - .02
Purchase [or stock-in-trade 27 - 5500102
Changes in fnventories of fnished goods, work-in-progress 28 - TG
Employee benefit expenses 24 52.28 49.04
Finance costs 3 (L) LT
Deprecianion and smortizition expensés 31 10.50 11.92
Other expenses 32 R1.95 0927
Total expenscs (1Y) 144.74 762,32
v Profit before exceptional items and tax (111-IV) {116.949) 176,32
Y1 Add: Exceptional ltems - -
VIl Profit before tax (V4 V1) (116.99) 176.32

VIIT Less: Tax expensc
{1y Current 1ax

of Current viar . REE T
of Farlicr vears ((h83) {0006
12 Delerred tax
of Current year (27.63) 14160
Total tax expense (VI {28.48) 44.04
Profit after tax (VII-VIIL) A4 (B8.51) 132.28
X (ther comprehensive income
afly ltems that will be reclassificd to profit or Joss * =
atii) Ineome tax relating o tems that will be reclassified o profit or loss
bify liems that will not be reclassificd 1o profit or loss (6371 1.6
b(if) Income tx relating 1o items that will not be reclassificd o profic or loss 728 (A0
Total other comprehensive income for the vear B (50.43) 1.20
X Total comprehensive income for the vear (IX+X) (A1) (104.94) 133,48
Farning per equity share (Face value of Bs. 100 cach) 34
(1) Basic {im Hs.} {30.12) 53499
(23 Diluted (in Rs.) {$0.12) 54499
Swmmary of significant accounting policies x
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial staements,
As per onr report of even date attached.
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Dhirectors
Chartered Acconntants
Firm Kegistration No.: 104 T16W/ W 100096 7, , n [.’
:i—g e _—pl.m ‘*w
\‘4’ . ﬁ Girace R. Deora Puran Parmar
0 Director (IN: 003 12080) Chief Financial Officer
Kumnal Yakharia *
I ol y i
Partuer \= q - ; — //
Membership No.: 148916 '.!; 5 - -
UDINILALLEILE &y SRy Ramu 8. Deora ~___Urcca Shirish Shirole
Director (DIN: msusﬁﬂ,}, \ ~odB y Secretary
Place: Mumibai l,r}";:i‘r-’"f - "‘“-\ll )
Dated: 26th May, 2023 (T TOE
W bl ___;_,_;':" /
4 ALY
£ Yol 4



TRIGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
(CIN: L24249MH1972PLO015544)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

|Rs. in Lakls]

Il

20222023 ||

0212022 |

B

€)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Wet Peofin before tay and Extraordinary ems
Addjustment lor:

[leprociation | Amocisaion

[nterest Income

Reclassilication of remeasurement of employee benefits
Interest Expuenscs

Sunilry balance written back

Loss om sale of Fioed Assets

Investmont Expenscs

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES
AMUSTMENTS FOR WORKING CAFITAL CHANGES

Increasc Decrease in Assets

Changes In Invemories

Increase/Deerease Trade Receivahle

Imerease Tierrease in oher finencial and noa-financal assets
Increase Decrease Trade pavables

Imcpease Thecrease in other Gnancial dnd non-inancial linbilities
|ncrease Decrease in Labilities

Changes in Provision

Cash Geperated from Operations

Cirect taxes paid [ {refund)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchise of Fived Assors including Capital Work in Progress
Sales of Fixeed Assets

Purchase of Investment

fnvestment Expenscs

Interest Received

MET CASI USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITY
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Met (Decrease)) Increase in Short Term Borrowings
Interest Paid

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITY

NET CHANGES IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A # B4}
OPENING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH & CASH BEQUIVALENTS

{106,940
10,50
18,00y
{6371
{00
.02
{h&4

(749)

(18744
{(x37)
{2.3%)
140
(1. 24)
{001

143 .

(s, 15

{193:59)

509

{157 6i1
{54 1. 58)
[EhHA
153

{92741

(427410
{E Dk
(LUl

R

AREYY

{ LOG5.01)

1, 1.9

05491

(L085.01)

17622
1192
(18.27)
164
1.52
{14 58§
0,600
{03
{17.49)
158 84
1.
005
130006
(15.34)
0,24
{029
12:52
22747
ARG
{3050
46,79
{2.68)
(1%
ARIEY
18.50
15.92
15492
1.0
(1.52)
{1.52)
(1.52)
361.20
Hi19.72
1, 180,92
361.20

15

| "s.".u'.lﬂ‘-‘ﬁ'HE |
=

W




TREGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

(CIN: L2Z4249MHT97 IPLCO15544)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCTI 31, 2023

[Rs. in Lakhs)
! | 20222025 || 20212022 |
Notes
Closing Balanee of Cash & Cash Eguivalents
| Cash and Cash Fquivalents Includes: (Refor Note Mo 11
CASH I HANT {61 0.55
BALANCE WITH SCHEDULET: HANES
- I Currest Accouat 95.31 750
- T Finedl Drepasit (including Acerued Inlerest) I 104 T4
95.91 1.150.92

2 The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” set out in dccounting Standard 3 - Cash Flows Stacment

3 Provious year figures have been regrouped snd rearranged wherever considered necessary 1o make them comparable with thuse of the current year

As per our report of even date attached.
For Kano Doshi Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 104746W AW 1000596

W25

Kunal Vakharia

Partner

Membership No.: 148916 _ /3
UPIM', 233483 16BGUSYVERSE 7

Mace: Mumbai
[ated: 26th May, 2023

For and on behalf of Hoard of Uiru:ll;T

?iﬂm.:_ SL \;}uie__, o el
Grace K. Deora Puran Parmar
Director (DIN: 0312080} Chicl Firancial Officer

%ﬂ-——*—:w

Ramu 5. Deor Ulreca Shirish Shirole
Dhirector (IN; B0512369) Company Secretary
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TRIOCHEM PRODCUTS LIMITED
(CIN: LZ4249MH1972PLE015544)
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2023

[Rs. in Lakhs]
A. Equity Share Capital
Particulars No, of $hares Amount
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 (Face Value of Rs.10/- each) 2.45.000 24,50
{:hanges in equity share capital during the vear - .
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 4.45.000 24.50
Changes in equity share capital during the vear
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 2,458,000 24,50
B. Other Eqguity
Particulars Reserves and Surplos Other items of Other Total

Capital | General Reserves | Retained Farnings |  comprehensive
Reserve Remeasurement of
nel defined benefit
plans

Falance as at 315t March, 2021 .04 177.86 970.64 i LBG) 1. 196,68
Prafic for the year - - 13228 132,28
Remeaurements of Defined Benefir Plan : . + 1.40 1.20
Fair Value cffeet of Investments ol shares - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 0.04 177,66 1.102.92 (066 1,280.16
Profin for the vear . . (HH.51) (BE.51)
Remeaurements of Defined Benefit Plan - . - [Sfa3) {50.45)
Fair Yalue elfect of Investments of shares - 2
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 .04 177.86 1.014.42 (57.0%) 1.135.22

As per our report of even date attached,
For Kanu Doshi Associates LLP For and on behalf of Board of Dircciors
Chartered Acconntants

Firm Registration No.: 104740W/W100096 4 _ ﬂ
oo e Lo o o
_-{A ce B Deora Puran Panmar
Director (DIN: 00312080) Chief Financial Officer
Kumal Vakharia .
s - Yt
Membership No.: 148916 — — //
UPIML 2L LBl G sy i, Hammn 8. Deora Ureca Shirish Shirale
g Director (DIN: 00312369) Company Secretary

Place; Mumbai
Dated: 26th May, 2023
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TRIGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

1

Company overview

Trivchem Products Limited {the "Company”) s an existing public limited company incorporated on 17011972 under the provisions of the
Indian Companies Act, 1950 and deemed to cxist within the purview of the Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at ath Floor,
Sambava Chamber, Sir P M. Road, Fort, Mumba - 400 001, 10 has been engaged primarily in the business of manufacturer and exporter of
pharmaceuticals products, Al's and chemicals. The equity shares of the Company are listed on BSE Limited ("BSE™). The finandal statements
are presented in Indian Rupee (3)

Significant accounting policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopled in the preparation of these financial statements. These palicies have
heen conststently applied 1w all the vears presented. unless otherwise stated.

A Basis of preparation of financial statement

The financial statements Complics in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notilied under the Companics
(Inelian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notfied under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2003 {the "Act”) and oiher
refevant provisions of the Act and other accounting principles generallv gecepted tn India,

The financial starements were autharized for ssue by the Company's Board of Directors on 20th May, 2023,

These fnancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which s also the functional currency, Al the amounts bave been
rounded off 1o the nearest lakhs, unless otherwse indicated

B Useof estimates and judgements
The preparation of findncial statements requires management e make judgments, cstimates and assumptions o the application of
accounting policies that affect the reported amounis of wssets, liabilites, imeome and expenses, Aol resulis may dilfer from these
estimates. Contlnuous evaluation is done on the estimation and judgments based on historical experience and other lacors, including
expectations of future events that are belivved 10 be reasonable. Revisions w accounting estimites are recognised prospectively,

€ Current and nou-current classification

Al assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's operating evele and other ceiteria set out in
the Schedule NI o the Companies Ace 2013 Based on the nature of products snd the time berween the acquisition of assces for
processing and their realisation in cash and cash cquivalents, the Company his ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current - non-cuerent classification of assets and liabilives,

I} Foreign currency translation
i Functional and presentation currency
Ttems included in the Anancesl stitements of the Company are measured using the curreéncy of the primary ¢oonomic environment in
which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The fAinancial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INK), which is
Company's functional and presentation curmency

ii Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the functional curcency wsing the cxchange rates at the dates of the transacions
Forcign exchange gains and Josses resulting from the sexlement of such transacuons and from the transhtion of monetary asscts and
liabilities denominaed in loreign currencies at vear end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. All the foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the stitement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other expenses or other income as

applicable
E  Property, plant and cquipment
i Frechold land is carried a1 historieal cost including expenditure that is direaly ansbutahle 1o the acquisition of the land

i All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less sccumulated depreciation. Cost includes expenditure that is
ihirectly aunbutable o the acquisition ol the items.

il Subsequent costs are included in the assel’s carrying amount of recogniscd as @ separate assel, s appropriste, onlv when i is
probable that future cconomic benefits assoctated with the ftem will Qow 10 the company and the eost of the item can be measurced
refiably. The carrving amount of any component aceounted for as a separile assel is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintemince are charged o profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred

iv Cost of Capital Work in Progress ( OWIP) comprises amount paid towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding
as of gach balance sheet date and construction cxpenditures, other expenditures necessary fur the purpose of preparing the CWIP for
itintended use and borrowing cost incurred before the gualifving assel is ceady for intended use. CWIP is noi d) :Ic l'ﬂ‘l.{tt"‘ti uniil such
time s the relevant assel s completed and ready for its intended use
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TRIOCHEM PRODLUICTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

G

H

v Depreciation methoeds, estimated uselul lives and residual value
{a) Fixed assers are stated an cost less accumulated depreciation

iy Depreciation is provided on a written down value method b the mtes and manner as prescribed under Schecule 11 1 the
Companies Act, 2013 The depreciation charge for cach period is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless it is included
in the carrving amount of any other asset. The useful lile, residual vlue and the depreciation method are reviewed atleast al cach
financial vear end. 11 the expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are aceounted for prospectively a8 2 change in
avpounting eatimate,

vi Tangible assets which are not ready for their intended use on reporting dite are carried as capital work-in- progress

vii

The residual values are not more than 3% of the orginal cost of the assel
An asset's curying amount is writlen down immediately 1o its cecoverable amount of the asset’s carrying amount is greater than iis
cstimated recoverable amount

Fatdmated useful lves, resdual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking inte account commercial and
technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and ear and adjusied prospectively, if appropriate.

tiains and Tosses on disposals are detwrmined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss
within ether expenses or ether income as applicable,

Investment Property

Praperiy that s heled for longterm rental vields or lor capital appreciation or both, and that s sot eccupied by the Company, is clissified
as Investment property, Investment property is measured initially at its cose, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised 1o the asset's careving amount only when i is probable that furure econamic
benelits assocated with the expencditure will fow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrving amount of the replaced
part i derceognisce. Investment propertics (except frechold land) are depreclated using the Written down value method over their
estimated uselul lives at the rates prescribed under Schedule [1of the Companies s, 2003

Intangible assets

i An intangible assel shall be recognmed if, and only 6 (@) @t is probable that the expected future economic benelits thar are
attributahle o the asset will fow wo the Company and (by the cost of the assct can be measured reliably

il Computer software s capitalised where it is expeeted o provide future enduring cconomic bencfits, Capitalisation costs inclucde
licence fees and costs of implementation | svstem integration services, The costs are capltafised in the year in which the relevant
software s implemented for wse. The same is amortsed over a period of 3 vears on straight-line method.

Borrowing Cost

i Borrowings are ingtially recognised a far value. net of ransaction costs incureed, Borrowings are subsequently measured a
amartised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costsy and Lhe redemption amount & recognised in profit or
loms over the period ol the horrowings using the effectve interest method, Fees paid on the estsblishment of foan Balites are
recopnised as transaction costs of the loan 1o the extent that it is probable that some or all of the Geility will be drawn down. 1o this
case, the fee is delerred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable thae some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitaliscd as 4 prepayment lor lguidity services and amortised over the peried of the Bacility 1o
which it relates

i Borrowings are classified ns current finencial habilities unless the group has an unconditional nght to defer setdement of the liahilite
for a least 12 months after the reponing period, Where there s a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on
or before the end of the reporting period with the effect tha the babiliy becomes pavable on demand on the reporting date. the
entity docs not classily the liability as currene, if the lender agreee, after the reporting peried and before the approval of the financal
statements for issue, not o demand payment as s consequence of the breach.

Incoine tax, deferred tax and dividend distebution tax

The Income iy expense or credit for the year s the 1ax pavable on the current vear's 1axable income based on the applicable income ax
rate adjusted by changes in deferred 1 assets and liabilitics ateributable o empaorary differences and 1w unused tay Josses
Current and deferred tax is recognised in the profic and loss excepl 1o the extent it relates w items recognised diceetly in equity or other
comprehensive income, in which cise it s recognised in equity or other comprebensive income respectively
i Corrent income tax
Current tax charge is based on taable profit lor the vear, The tax rates and 1ox liws used w0 compute the ;man\ are thiose that are
eracted or substantively enacted, ar the reporting date where the Company operates and Hl.,n'.‘."nll.l..s,.m.bk oo 'r{anagl:mcm

periodically evaluates posilions laken in tax returns with respedt o situations in which applu:n}ﬂu\'tﬂf rcp,m'i'::: subject o
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the hasis of amounts expected o be Pﬂ"d—*“ [h: ummj}l@
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

i

Current tax asscts and tax labilities are olfset when there is o legally enforceable rght 1o set off current tax assets aganst current Ly
liabilitics and Company intends either 1o settle on a net hasis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

Deferred tax
Uelerred i is provided using the lability methosl on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of asscis and liabilities and
their carrving amounts in the financial statements at the reponting date. Deferred tax assers are recognised 1o the extent that i is

probable that [uture taxable income will be avallahle against which the deductble wemporary differences, unused tax losses,
depreciaion carey-forwartls and unused tax eredits could be utilised.

Delerred income tx is not accounted for if it arises from Inidal recognition of an asset or lability in 2 transaction other than a
business combination that at the tme of the ransaction affects neither accounting profit nor twable profit (ax loss),

Delerred tax assets and labilities are measured based on the tx rates that are expected woapply in the period when the asset is
realised or the liahility is settled. based on tox rates andd tax Liws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
tate,

The careving amount of deferred tay assers &5 reviewed at cach reporting date and adjusted w reflect changes in probability that
stifficient txable prolits will be avatdable o allow all or part of the wset w be recovered

Deferred income tax asscts and liahifitics are offsel against each other and the resulant net amount &5 preseoted in the Balance
Sheet, AFand only when, (4) the Company has a legally enforceable right o sel-ofl the current income tax assets and labilities, and (1)
the deferred income tix assets and lishilities relate w income tax levied by the same tation authority

Minimum Alternate Tas credit s recognised as an assel only when and 1o the extent there §s convincing evidenee that the compiny
will pay normal income tax during the speificd period. Such asset is reviewed at each Dalance Sheet date and the carrving amaunt of
the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there s o longer 2 canvincing cvidenee 1o the effect that the Company will pay
normal income Lk during the specified penod,

J  Revenue recognition

Revenue s measured al the fair vadue of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise
duty and nee of returns, trade discount taxes and amounts collected on behall of third partics. The Company recognises revenue as unier:

Sales

(i) The Company recognizes revenne from sale of goods when:

{a) The significant risks and rewards of ownership in the goods are translerred o the bover ws per the erms of the conteact, which
coincitles with the dlelivery of gooeds

ihy The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement  the degree usually associated with the ownership nor
effective contrel over the goods sold.

() The amount of revenue Gin be reliahly measured.

(e} 1t is probable that future ceonomic benefits assoctated with the ransaction will flow 1o the Company

(e} The eost incurred or w0 be incuered in respeet of the transaction can be measured reliably,

{1 The company bases s estimates on historical resulis, taking into consideration the type ol customer. the tvpe of transaction and
the specitics of each arrangement.

Eftective Aprl 1, 2018, the Company has apphied Ind A5 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework tor determining whether,
hesw moch and when revenue 15 10 be recognised. Ind A5 115 replaces Tnd AS 18 Revenue and Tnd AS 11 Construction Contracts. The
Company has adopted Ind A% 115 using the comulmive clleat method The effeor of initially applying this standard is recognised at
the date of initial applicion (Le: Apeil | 2008), There are no material impact on revenue recagintion by applving this sundard.

Other income

(1) Interest income

Ieterest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method, The effective interest rate is the rae
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipes through the expecied life of the financial asset w the gross carrving amount of &
financiad wsset. When calculating the effective interest rate, Lthe group estimates the expeeted cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepavment. extension, call and similar options) but does not consider
the expected credit losses.

{ii) Dividends

Diwidends are recognised in profit or loss only when the rght to receive payment is cstablished, it is pmlfah{clhﬂ the ceomomic

"

henefits associated with the dividend will ow e the group, and the amount of the dividend can be mrﬁrl.ul.d reliably. %

i
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
The Company classifics is financial assews in the Tollowing categories: a) those o be measured subsequemly a fr value (either
through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and by those 1o he measured ol amortized cost. The dassification

depends on the entity's business mexlel for managing the nancial wssers and the contractual terms of the cash Bows.

Financial assets and liahilitics arising from different transactions are off-ser against cach other and the resullant net amount s
presented in the balance sheet i and only when, the Company currentdy has a legally enforceable right 10 set-off the related
recoggniscd amounts and intends cither 1o settle on a net basis or W realize the assets and settle the liabilities simullancously

b Measurement

{A) Initial measurement

A initdal recognition, the Company meastres financial instruments at s fur value plus. in the case of o financial asset not an fair value
through profit or loss. transaction costs thiit are dicectly atcdbutable o the acquition of the inandal assets, Otherwise transaction
costs are expensed in the statement of peofit and loss,

(B) Subsequent measurement - financial assets
The subscquent measurement of the nancial assets depends on their classilication as lollows:

(i) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Assets that are held {or collection of contractual cash flows where those cash lows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured atamortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIRY) method (17 the impact of discounting | any transaction cosls fs
significant). Interest income from these financial assets Is incduded in finance income

{ii} Financial asseis at fair value through other comprehensive income (' FYTOCT)
Fruity fnvestmients which are pot held foe trading and for which the Company kas clected o present the change in the fair value in
other comprehensive income and debt instruments that are held for collection of contraciual cash Dows and for selling the Gnancial
asscts, where the assers’ cash flow represent solely pavment of principal and interest, are measured at FVTOCL
The changes n fair value are ken Ihrnugh 0L, exeept for the impairment, interest (hasis BIR method), dividend and furri.g_n
exchange differences which are recognised in the statement of profitand loss
When the Bnancial asset is derecognized, the related accumubated fair value adjustments in ©C] as at the date of derecognition are
reclassilied from equity and recognised in the statement of profitand loss. However, there is no subsequent reclassification of far
vitdue gains ared losses W statement of profit and loss in case ol equily instruments,

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

All equity instruments and fnancial assets that do not mect the eritenia for amortized cost or TVIOCT are measured an fadr value
through protit or loss. Interest (hasis EIR method) and dividend income from FVTPL s recognised in the statement of profit and loss
within finance imcome | finance costs separately from the other gains fosses ansing from changes in the fair value

lmipairment

The company assesses on o lorward looking basis the expected oredit losses associted with s assets carried at amorticed cost and
debt instrument carriced at FVTOCL The impairment methodology applicd depends on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since inttial recopnition. | credit risk has not increased significamly, twelve month ECL §s used 1o provide lor
Impairment loss, otherwise Hietime BCL & used

However only in case of trade receivables, the company applics the simplificd approach which requires expected lifctime losses to
he recognized from inttial eecognition of the receivables.

i¢) Subsequent measurcment - financial Habilitics
Other financial Habilities are indtially recognised an faie value Jess any direaly aurbutable transaction cosis. They are subsequently
meastred utamortized cost using the EIR method (i the impact of discounting | any transaction costs is significant),

¢ De-recognition
The financid habilities are de-recognised rom the balance sheet when the under-ling obligations are extingushed. discharged,
lapsed, cancelled, expires or legally released. The Ginancial assets are de-recognised from the halance sheet when the rights 1o receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired. or have been transterred and the Company has translerred substamially all risks wnd

rewnrcls of ownership A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise o o linancial assct of one entity and a financial labiliy or
equity instrument of another entty:

O Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents includes cash i hand, deposits with banks, other short term highly liguid :mmum.g.;s“n.'lﬂ:‘ m.ﬂ muaturitics
of three months or less that are readily conventible o known amounts of cash and which are subject 1o an i yﬂﬁmrﬂh n!\-{mngﬁ in

value |
(E()2)
i II:\\" R g ’;"'l
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TRICCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

T

u

For the purpose of presentation in the staement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes ouestanding hank overdralt shown
within current liabilities in statement of linancial balance sheet and which are considered us integral pant of company’s cash manusgement

policy.
Investments
Fejuity investments are measuree al fair value, with value changes recognised in Othier Comprehensive fncome, cxcept lor those mibitul
fund for which the Company has clected w present the fair value changes in the Stawement of Profit and Loss,
Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured ot amortised cost using the clfective interes)
method, less provision lor expected credit loss
Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liahilities for goods and services provided (o the Company prior to the end of inandal vear which are unpald.
Trade and other pavables are reeognised, initially ar faie value, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate
method,
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asseis
i Provisions:
A provisipn is recognized, when company bas a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is probable
that an autllow of resaurces embodying cconomic benefits will be required 10 sentle the ohligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made for the amount of ohligation. The expense refating to the provision is presented in the profit and Joss net of
any reimbursement

If the cffcct of the time walue of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current prestas mate that rellecs, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liahility, When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due te the passage of tme is
recognised us 4 finunce cost,
i Contingent Liabiliry
A eontingent liahility is 1 possible obligstion that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events bevond the control of the Company or o present obligation that is not recognized
heciuse it is not probable that an cutllow of resources will be eequired o seule the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is @ lahility thar cannet be recognized because it eannot be measured relisbly. The Company does
nut recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements,
{Contingent liahilitics, il material, are disclosed by way of notes and contingent asseis, 1F any, are disclosed in the notes to financial
slatemenis.
fii Contingent Assets
Contingent Assets are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits is probable
Earnings per share
i Basic earnings per share
Basic carnings per share is caleulaed by dividing:
- the profit atrbutable w owners of the Company: and
- b the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted lor bonus clements in cquity
shiares issued during the vear,
i Diluted carnings per share
Diluted carnings per share adjust the Ggurces used in the determination of basic earnings per share o ke inlo account:
- the after income i effect of interest and other finandng costs associated with dilutive potential equity shares; and

- the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the converston of all dilutive
potential cquity shares.

Lease Accounting

As o lessce, the Company previousv classified leases s operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease
transferred significanly all of the risks and rewards incidental w ownership of the underbving asset (o the Company. Under fnid AS 1106,
the Company recognizes right of use assets and lease labilivies for most leases Le these leases are on balance shee

O transition, the Compuny has spplied following practical expedients; -
i Applied asingle discount rate 10 a pordolio of leases of similar assets in similar ceonomic Lnﬂmnmcntﬁhh s;mli.‘lrcqﬁﬂ.l.r.c

%3




THIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes 1o the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

il Applivd the expemption not W recognise right-ofuse-assers and liabilitics for leases with less than 12 months of lease term on the
date of ransition

it Excluded the initial direet costs from the measurement of the right-of -use-asset al the date of transition,

iv Grandbuthered the assessment of which transactions are, or contain leases. Accordingly. Ind A8 116 is applicd only 1o comraos tha
were previously identificd as lesses ander Ind AS 17,

v Relivel on s assessment of whether beases are onerous. applying bnd A5 37 immediately before the date of it applicaon as an
alternative 1o performing an impairment feview
vi Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the conlract contalns options to extend or terminate the lease
vV  Employee benefits
i Short-term obligations

Liahilitics for wages, salaries and leave encashment including non-monetary benefits that are expected n he seitled wholly within 12
months after the end of the period in which the emplovees render the related serviee are recognised in respea of employees'
services up o the end of the reporting period and are measued at the amounts expected o be pall when the labilities are settled
The lbilities are presented as current emplovee benefit obligations ia the balance sheet

ii Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities [or carned leave are not expeeted w be setled wholly within 12 months afier the end of the pericd in which the
emplavees render the related service. They ire therefore measured as the present value of expected uture pavments te be made in
respect of services provided by emploves up to the end of the reparting period using the projected unit eredit method, The benelits
are chiscounted wsing the appropriate market vields at the ead of the reporting period that have werms approximaling to the terms of
the related obligaton. Remeasurements as a result of expenence adjusiments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recogniscd in
proficor loss.

The chligations are presented as current liahilities in the balance sheet i the entdty does not have an unconditional rght w defer
settlement for at least twelve months afier the reporting period, regardless of when the actual setilement is cxpected o oceur.

iii Post-employment obligations
The group operates the following post-cmployment schemes:
# Defined benefit grataity plan:

Gratuity and Leave encashment which are defined benefits are sccrued based on actuarial valuadon working provideed by
Independent actuary. The Contribution is charged 1w profit and loss.

The Hability or msser recognised in the balance sheet in eespect of defined benefis gratuity plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan. The defined benefit obligation is caleulated annually
as per the report on independent acuary, The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reterence to market vields at the end ol the reporting period on government bonds that have erms
approximating o the wems of the related ohligation. The net interest cost is caleabared by applying the discount rate 10 the net
balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fir vidoe of plan assets, This cost s mcuded in employee benefit expense in the
statement ol proft and loss. Remessurement gains and losses arising [rom experieace adjustments and changes in actoarial
assumpiions are recogniscd in the perlod in which they oceur, directy in other comprehensive income. They are included in
retined carnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the halance sheer

b Defined Contribution plan:

Contribution pavahle 10 recognised provident fund and superannuation scheme which s defined contribution scheme s charged w
Seatement of Profic & Loss, The company has no further obligation to the plan beyond its contribution.

W Cash Flow Stitement

Cashi flows are reported using the indicect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of & non-cash
nture, any deferras or aceruals of past or future operating cish receipls or paveents and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or imancing cash lows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated

X Operating Cycle
Basce on the nature of products activities of the Company.and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash

or cash equivalents, the Company has determinesd its operating ovele as 12 months for the purpose of chasilication of its asscts and
liahilities as current and non current.

Tri -,

Y  Rounding of amounts PR Y

Al amounts diselosed inthe Anancial staeements and notes have heen rounded off o the nearest Rupees J:Js:s :Iup Ly W :{qmm%h] Ln)ess
otherwise stated as per the requirement ol Schedule 11 {Division 1) 'I. oy :! Rl .-l-‘T_;. /
\-"/ ‘.-H-\--\- P 4
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

[Rs. in Lakhs)
NOTE NO. 3 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Particulars Freehold land Building PMant and Furniture & Vehicles Office Total
machinery fixtures equipments
Gross block
As at March 31,2021 .30 134 176,20 L3D 012 B4 18750
Additions - 5.92 - - 5912
Dispusals . . . . .74 0.74
As at March 31,2022 (.39 1.3 182 130 12 741 192.67
Adilitions - - -
Disposals : : : : :
As at March 31,2023 1459 144 142 130 12 Al 19267
Particulars Frechold land Building Mant and Furniture & Vehicles Office Total
machinery lixtures couipments
Accumulated depreciation
As al March 31,2021 i B305 0.7 iRE:] 1l
Depredation charge during the year .0 11 34 0101 0,14 11,55
Disposals - - - -
As at March 31,2022 - i 105.03 079 (] 112,65
Depreciation charge during the year X 110 i 10,15
Disposaly - E 4
DLE As at March 31,2023 - 0005 115.13 (.83 6.79 12280
Net mrryins amount as al March 31, 2022 .39 1.3 T7.08 0,50 (12 164 [0.02
Nel carrying amount as al March 31, 2023 .39 1.49 .99 146 (12 0,04 (9. BH
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITEDR

NOTE RO, 4 : INVESTMENT PROPERTY

[Rs. in Lakhs]

Particulars Building Total
Gross block
As at March 31,2021 989 4R
Adddlitions . +
Disposals - .
As at March 31,2022 9.8 FR
Addelitioms
Dispesals . .
As at March 31,2023 .80 4.6
Farticulars Building | Total
Accumulated depreciation
As al March 31,2021 217 247
Depreciaton charge during the vear 057 037
Diisparsils - .
As at March 31,2022 255 255
Depreciation charge during the vear .35 0135
Disposals - -
As al March 31,2023 280 o0
Nct carrying amount as af March 31, 2022 7.35 735
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 .99 0.9
Particulars March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
Rental income Nil Nil
Direvt operading expenses from property that did not generate renal income. 2350 Aol

There are no estrictions on the renlisability of investment property.

| The company is using same i for the same class ol asset as applicable [or propenty plant and equipment

Fair Value

Invesiment property - Residential building, the market value has not been asceriaimed

The range of estimates within which fuir vidue is highly likely to He- Between B 400 Crore tood 20 Croce
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TRIGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 20235

NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

|Rs. in Lakhs|

Particulars Face As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Value Quantity Amonnt Cuantity Amount
Non Trade lnvestments
Dunted
Enuity Instruments (AL FYOCTY
Life Insurance Corporation of India s, 1= 54,5000 REANRE
CeALL {Tmling Lek Rs. 10 1,5 K 14085
NHPC Lad R 13- 25,1000 0.57
Brilasoft Limited Hs 2 203,410) it 4
lotad Walue of Quoted Investmenis S0 -
Unguoted
Mutual Funds (At FVTPL)
SHI Premicr Liguid Fund - Direct LERNEE TS LLGOR0HT 4008,9%
Plant - Weekly Dividend
Taotal Value of Unguoted Investments AH99
Total of Long Term Investments L0567
Less: Provision for Diminution in the value of Investment 63,79 s
Net Valoe of Investment U41.58
OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
| Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Umsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
e posits AL T332
740 732
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)
Name of the shareholder March 31. 2023 March 31, 2022
Deterred tax assets (Net (Keler Note So. 7.1 2763
2783
Note No,: 7.1
Particulars Net balance as  |Recognised in | |Recognised in | Net balance as
al April 01, statement of Ol al
222 profit and loss March 31, 2023
Deferred Tax Liabilities | {Asscls)
Froperty, plant and equipment [ Investment Property ( Other 492 0.7 8.2
Intangihle Assers
Fair Value through P&L {0.02y {2R.45) {2847
Fair Value through (0] {0.1%) (7.28) (7.47)
Cthers Matter - .
Expenses allowable under imeome tax on payment basis {163 1.54 - IR (1)
T8 (27.03) {7.28) (27.H3)
Particulars Net balance as  |Recognised in | |Recognised in | Net balance as
at April 01,  [statement of ol al
2021 profit and loss March 31, 2022
Deferred Tax Liabilities | (Assets)
Property, plant and equipment | Investment Property | Uther R (1.01) - 892
Intangible Assets
Fair Value through P&L {11.50) 11.54 - (0,02
Fair Value through OC) {0,601 040 (0,19
Others Mater ; . - .
Expenses allowable under income tax on payment basis (1.7 Q.07 - {1.03)
(3452 11,600 T{.'_-l:i']_' 708

%1




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Income tax

The major components of income Ly expense for the vear ended 31 March, 2025

[Hs. in Lakhs]

| Particulars [[ March 31, 2023] March 31, 2022
Profit and Loss:
Current tax - net of effect of carlier vears : Rs. 0,00 Lakhs (31 March 2022 - Bs. 0.00 Lakhs) {0.85) 3544
Ueterred w - net of reversal of carlier vears : R, Nil (31 March 2022 . Hs. Nil) {27.63) IR
{28 48) A4
Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate
Particulars For the year  |For the vear
ended March  |ended March
31, 2023 31,2022
Frofit belore income tax expense i 110.5949) 176,42
Tax at the Indian s rate (0 23.17% (31 March 2022 @2 25.17%) (2545} 4044
Add: Items giving rise to difference in tax
Permanent difference (.84 (392
Oihers 097 {1.26)
Tax for carlicr years [{HHE5) .
Tiotal Tax Expenses (28 4H) 4,004
§  OTHER NON CURRENT TAX ASSETS
|P‘miculam March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Halance with government authoritics 3315
& 33.15
9 OTHER XON CURRENT ASSETS
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
{Unsecured consider good, unless other wise specified)
Advance recoverable in cash or kind or for vilue 1w be received 1.29 .75
1.29 .75
10 INVENTORIES
|Pa_1.1jc||jar_q March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Haw Matcrial 1.44 A.44
Packing Material 01, 1,46
5.5 530
11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
[Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Halenee With Hinks
= Ln Clment account 9551 =5 44
- Fised Dreposit (Including Acerued Interesty (Reter Note No. T . 110474
Cosh o Thaned IR .53
95.91 I, 18092
Note No. 111 All the fised deposits having maturity of less than 12 months.
12 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
iU nsecured constder good, unless other wise sped ficaly
Other receivables 235 o1z
[nterest Receivahle 0,29 .26
262 a3

13 OTHER TAX ASSETS

Marticulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Advanee Tax and Tax Dedueted an Source (Net of Provision [or Taxation)

68

TAH)
.60

0,800

= {150

T
NN
o )2)
% 13 |



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes Lo the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

14

15

[Hs. in Lakhs)

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
[Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |
iUnsecured consiiler good, unless other wise specified)
Halunce with Central Excse and GST 9,70 2.0
Advanee to suppliers and service providers 030 (3.1r5
Advance reeoverable in cash or kind or for value 1 be received L35 241
Advance to Gratuity Fund {Refer Note No. 3G) 3.34 .20

({eRy 1 1097
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Anthorized Share Capital
250,000 Equity shares, s 100 par value 5.00 25.00
{31 March 2022 250,000 couily shares Bs. 100 each)

25.00 25.[M}

Issued, Subseribed and Fully Paid Up Shares
2450001 Pouity shares, Rs. 100- par value fully paid up 24.50 2450
{31 March 2022 245,000 equity shares s, 105 each)

2450 24.50

Nobe No. 15.1: The reconcilation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period 31-03-2023%:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
No. of Shares Amount No. of Sharcs [ Amount
Number of shares at the beginning 2,45, 100} 2450 245,00 24.50

Aclil: Shares issued during the year .
Less - Shares bought back (if any) - - - -
Number of shares at the end 245000 24.50 245000 2450

Note No. 15.2; Terms | rights attached to equity shares

(A) The company has only one class of eouity shares having o par value of Rs 10= per share. Fach holder of eoquity shares is entitled 10 one vole
per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Dircctars is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General
Mecting,

(B In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be emited w receive remaining sssets of the company, afier
dlistribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion wo the number of cquity shares held by the sharcholders.

Note No. 15.3: The details of shareholders heliding more than 5% shares in the company

Name of the sharcholder March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sumber of % held as at MNomber of % held as at
shares held shares held
Mr Ramu 5. Deora A, 5 [E RN 34,500 14 08%
Mr. Rajesh R Deor i, DM T4.09% RINLEE N
Mr Rajiv 1, Theora 4,270 13.99% 34,270 13.909%
Famue M Deora HUE 27420 11.19% 27420 11.19%
Mrs, Grwce R Deora 3, (UMb 1469 RUREL L 1460 %

Note No. 15.4: The dealls of sharcholders holding of promoters
() Shares held by promoters @ March 41, 2023

Promoter Mame Mo, of Shares | % of tolal shares | % Change during the year, % of total shares

T Me. Kanma 5, Deora 34,500 1

) Mr. Rajesh K. Ieara 30,000 14.09%

33 Mr. Rajiv R, Deor 34270 1%99%

4y Hamu M Deora HUE 27,420 11049%

5) Mes. Grace B Deora 36,00 14.69%

Toul 1,068,150 (8 1% . i
A NN
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{h) Shares held by promoters at March 31, 2022

TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

[Rs. in Lakhs]

|I-'rr1mn:}tr:1' Name

No. of Shares I% ol total shares I % Change during the year, % of total shares |

1) Mr. Ramu 5. Deora 44,50 14 (8%
2y Mr. Rajesh R Deora 0,000 T5.09%
3} Mr. Rajiv 1. Deora 270 13.95%
Ay Ramu M Dreora HUF 27420 11.19%
) Mes. Grace K Deora A, UMb 14 649%
Tutal 1LOd, 159 (H.61%

OTHER EQUITY
Name of the shareholder

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Reserves & surplus?
Capital Heserve # .01 .04

Greneral Hescrves # # 177,80 177,80

Retained earnings Litieal 1 102.92

ither Comprehensive Incoame (CH01)

Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans {57060 (57.0%) (1108 {U1.0x2)
113522 1,280, 16

# Capital reserve mainly represents amount on capital account,

## General reserve rellects amount teansferred from statement of profic and loss in accordance with regulations of the Companies Ao, 2003
* For movement, refer statement of changes in equity

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES {NET)

Name of the shareholder March 31, 2023 March 31. 21]23]
Dieferred tax lHabilives {8ety (Hefer Note No, 7.1) TR
7.08

BORROWINGS

[Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Secured (Refer Note No, 18.1)

From Bank

Expon Packing Credit 01010 0,00
(RN Y] (R H

Note No. 18.1¢ The abiwve loan from State Bank of ladia, Banker of the Company. is secured primarily against 15t charge on the Company's
Current Assets,

TRADE PAYARLES
[Farlimlars

March 51, 2023 March 31, 2022

Current

Dues of micro and small enlerprises (Relor Note No. 1907 and 19.0)

Dues other than micro and small enterprises (Refer Note Noo 1901 and 19.2) 14.49
15.4%
Note No. 19.1: The company has not received informaion from vendors regarding theie status under the Micro, Small ‘and Medium
Enterprises Development AcL 2000 and hence disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the vear end together with interest paid | payable
ureder this Act have not been given

17. 10
17.10

Note Noo 19.2: The said information and Trade Pavables regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such
parties have been identified on the basts of informution svailable with the company.

|I‘m1inll.-1r.-t March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thercon remaining wnpaid w sopplicrs
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid w any supplicr as at the end of cach accounting vear:
{iiy Interest due on {1} above remaining anpaid 10 the supplicr as at the end of cach accounting vear:

{iii) nterest paid by the Company in weems of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2000, wlong with the amount of the payment made 1w the supplier bevond the —
appointed day during cach accounting vear P N



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

0

(iv) Interest due and pavable for the period of delay in making pavment (which have been pabd bt
heyond the appointed day during the year) bur without adding the interest specified under the Micro,
Small ane Mediem Enterprises Development Act, 2000

iv Interest acerued and remaining unpatd at the cnd of each accounting year; and

ivi) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
ilues s abovie are actually paid 1o the small enterprise, for the purpose ol disallowance @ a deductible

expenditure under seetion 23 0f the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developrment Act. 2000,

Note No, 19.3: Trade Payables due for pavment

{2} Trade FMavables ageing schedule as a1 March 31, 2023

[Rs. in Eakhs]

Particulars Cutstanding for fullowing periods from due date of payment Total
Less than & moniths - 1-2 2.3 More than
& months 1 year vears years 3 years
i1y MsME 5
(i) Chbers H3H .37 - 1205
(i) Disprned dues- MSME g $
{ivy Disputedd tues - others
Tastal B3R 1.27 12.65
Achil: Acerued Fxpense 5.84
Tostal Trasle Puvables 18.4%
{h) Trade Pavables ageing schedule as i March 31, 2022
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than | 6 montths - 1-2 -3 More than
& months 1 year Years years 5 years
(1) MSME .
i) Oithers 915 .04 k) 1351
(i) Disputed dues - MSME *
(i) Disputed ducs - others -
Testal 215 IRk} 133 14.51
Add: Acerued Exponse A5
Total Trade Pavables 17.10
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
[Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Sundry Creditors for Capital Goods .24
- .24

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

[l‘a.ni-:u]nr.&

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022 |

Stanutory Dhues Payable

PROVISIONS

(03

(.64

0t
(IR

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 51, 2022

Provision for Emplovee Benelin

For Leave Encashment | Unfunded)

a) CONTIGENT LIABILITY #

] g
-4
[ EFI i 2

3.29
339

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022 |

I} Disputcd Tax Liabilty

Income Tax Dispute - 430 Disallowance

Income Tax Act, 1961 pending with The Appellate Tribunal for the
Asscssment Year 19931994

ql

A2

3.2




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the fnancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

23

a5

7

8

[Rs. in Lakhs|
b) COMMITMENTS
[Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |

1} Estimated Amounts of Contract remaining to be executed on
Capial aceount and not provided fore

Note:
# The management does not expect these demands | caims 1o succeed. Claims. where the possibility of outflow of resotrces emboedying
economic benefils is remote, have not been considered in contingent lability,

REYENUE FROM OPERATIONS

| Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Sale of Products . BHL 16

52 10

OTHER INCOME

| Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |

Interest lncome (Refer Note No, 25.1) 18.09 1827

Chther Non Chpemting Income

I nrealised Gain on Investment in Mutual Fund 4.1

Dividend Received 165

Miscelianeous Receipt - 1.42

Sundey Bakance Written Back (Net) . BN

Fxchange Fluctwation Gain (Net) - 2.
2775 S6.4H8

Note No. 25.1 : Break-up of Interest Income

Interest income on other deposits 1h.A0 042
Imterest income on income Lax relund 379
Interest income on fixed deposit with hank 154001 17.95
1509 18.27
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
[Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 |
Raw Material
Inventory at the beginning of the vear 4 44 5.42
Achd: Purchases during the vear . 540,75
A T
Less: Transfer to Purchase for Stock in Trade - 550,62
Less: Inventory at the end of the vear 444 444
Cost of Materials Consumed . -
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Packing Material
Inwentory at the beginning of the vear (.51 088
Lesss: [nventory at the end of the vear 0,80 136
Cost of Materials Consumed - (02
{R17]
PURCHASE FOR STOCK IN THADE
{Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Traded Guowsls - 550062
33002
CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCE-IN-TRADE
[Particulars March 31, 2023 e March 31, 2022 |
luventories at the beginning of the f_::f’«”'-,-_ i o
Finished Goods - E ' ' 79.16
. :'Ir_..-.":" <016
q o \:"q-___ = g



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

luventories at the end of the vear

Fimished Gesods

29 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

[Rs. in Lakhs]

7010

[ Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Salories, Wages and Bonus 4873 45,35
Contribution w Provident and other fund 3.5% 4,04
Staff Welfare Expenses (L2 11.25

52.28 1904

30 FINANCE COST

[Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest Expense on Shor Term Bank Rorrowing 0,00 .0
Interest Expense on Income Tax Tayment - 149
Interest Expense on Loan from Director - 1.52

{1,610 1,71

31 DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

i[’aﬂitul:.rs

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022 |

Depreciation on Property, Mlant and Equipment
Pepreciation on Investment Froperty

32 OTHER EXPENSES

1115
35

11.5¢)

1155
37
L1.5

Particulars

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Fower & Fuel
Repairs & Maintenance
Plant & Machincry
Huilding
(ithers
Insurance Charges
ates & Taxes
Fent
Pavment to Statuone Auditor (Refer Note Mo, 32.1)
Water Charge
Labour Charges
Freight and Forwarding
[asting Feos
Postage and Telephone
Interest on 1%
Penalty on TDS and PT
Legal & Professional
Registrar & Share Transber Fec
lank Charges
Miscellaneous cxpenses
Lixss om Sale ol Fised Assers

[nvesiment Expenscs

Note Mo, 32,1 Pavment o Sttutory Auditors
As auditors .

Mudit Fees (including Limited Review)
Towvards GST/Service Tax *

105
|54
011

q3

278

T3
344
1K)
(18
211
890G
25.50)

40K
.53
HELA]
i
fAd
.95
.15
2.08

0.8%

H1.9%

b
1344

247

:7a
3N
17

2330

0.y
340
.05
14
it
1.75
19.54
0.1l
3.23
0,76

ELL]
FRT
1.3
a4
3.53
(.60
10k
(%27

1.96
0135
231



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes 1o the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

33

34

[Rs. in Lakls]
I Uther Capacity

it of pocket expenses 002 0.0

Towards GST/Service Tax * (.00 0,0
i 0.0

Tostal Awditors Remuneration 248 152

# Wote: Out of above G517 Senvice Tax eredit of Rs 37 8995 (Previous Year Rs. 351904 has boen tiken and the same has not been debited 1o
Statement of Profil & Loss.

EARNING PER SIHARE

[Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 |
() Profiv anributable 1o Equity Sharcholders (HH.51) 13218
(b} Newof Equiry Share oustanding during the vear EEERLLY 2,450
() Face Value of cach Equity Share (Rs.) 1tk n
(ddy Basic & Diluted earning per Share (1s) {30.12) 5499
Financial Risk Management

The Company s activities expose (1t creeit risk. liquidity risk and price risk:
This rote explains the sources of risk which the catity s exposed w and how the entity manages the risk and the impact thereof in the financial
statements

Hisk Exposure arising|Measurement Management
from

Credit Risk tash  and  cashiCredit  ratings,  Review of  aging|Strct credin conteol and monitoring
cojuivalents, tracle lanalvsis, on quarterly basis, systent, diversification of
recelvables and cointerparties, on quarterly basis.
linancial assels,

Ligpuiddiny Hisk Trade payables  and|Mawrity  apalysis,  cash fGow|Manwining  sufficient csh 0 cash
ither fincncial |projections. crquivalents and marketable security
liabilitics and fimus o realisation of

recefvibles.

Market Risk - Foreign Exchanpe Financial assets - and|Foreign currency exposure review and| The company partly hedged due 10
liahilities not[sensitivity analysis. natural hedge and s exploring 1o
denominated in [NR hedge its unbedged positions.

Interest Risk Lang Term Borrowing|Sensitivity Analvsis [nterest rate swaps
at Vartable Rates

Price Hisk Change in price of Faw|The company sourcing components) The company is able 1w pass on
matcrial from vendors direcly. hence iU doesisubsamial price hike IF any o the

not hedge its exposure o commaodity | customers.
price risk:

The Board provides guiding principles (or everall fisk mansgement, as well as polices covering specific arcas such as credit risk, Hequidity risk
price risk and foreign exchange risk cffecting business operation. The company's risk management is carmieed oul by the management as per
guidelines and policies approved by the Board of Direciors,

(A) Credit Risk

Credit risk i the sk that counterparty will ot meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading w a linancial
loss. Credit risk ¢ncompasses the direct risk ol defaaly, risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration risks. The Company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily tracde receivables), deposits with banks and loans given

Credit Risk Management

The company’s credit risk mainky from trade recebables s these are wpieally unsecured, This credit sk has always been managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuous monitoring the creditworthiness of customers o whom eredit s extended in the
normal course of business, The Company estimates the expected eredit Joss based on past dat, available information on public domain and
experience. Expected credit losses of financial assets receivible are estimated based on historical data of the Company. The company has
provisionng poliey {or expected credit losses.

Cin adoption of Ind A8 109, the Company uses expected credit loss mode] 10 assess the imparment loss or gain,

The company’s expostre 1o credit sk for trade receivables 35 as follows
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

[Hs. in Lakhs]
Particulars Gross Carrying amount Gross Carrving amonnt
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
| - 180 days past duc® - -
181 - 365 days past due - -
Marre than 305 davs pas due # 5 -
Total . -

* The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 180 days are still collectible in full. based on historical
pavment behaviour.

# The Company hased upon past trends determine an impairment allowance for loss on receivables oustanding for more than 1860 days pasi
{B) Liguidity Risk

Ligjuidity risk represents the inability of the Company 1o meet (s [inancial obligations within stpulated time, To mitigate this risk, the Company
maintins sulficient liguidity by way of working eapital limits from hanks.

The tahle below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilivies at the reporting date based on
contractual undiscounted pavments:

Particulars Less than 1 year Maore than 1 vear Total

As at March 31, 2023

Hormowings 01.00 . 0
Trade payahles 14.22 4.27 HH.49
Total 14.22 4.27 18.49
Particulars Less than 1 vear More than 1 year Total

As al March 31, 2022

Borrowings 0.00 - (.08}
Trade payables 1277 4.33 17.10
Total 12.77 1.33 17.10

(C) Interest rate risk

Ineerest rate risk s the sk that the Gir value or future cash flows of @ [nancial instrument will Ductuate because of changes in market interest
rates. In order o optimige the Company's position with regard 10 interest income and interest expenses and 10 manage the inferest rale sk
treasury performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk management by balancing the proportion of the fixed rae and Aoating rae
financial instruments in it wial porfolio,

The exposure of company borrswings to interest rate changes at the end of reporting perod are as fllows:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Variable rate borrowings (10K 01,18}
Fiseel rate borrowings . .

Total borrowings (1.0 0,00

Scnsitivity Analysis
Profitloss is seasitive to higherlower interest expense from borrowings as a resull of changes in interest rates,

Particulars Basis Impact on Profit before Tax

Paints March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Increase in Basis points —+ 5 A (316}
Drecrepse in Basis points « 3 (LK {111

(I} Foreign Currcncy risk disclosure

A, Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk than the foture cash flows of a firancial instrument will Quctuate beeause of changes in forcign exchange rates. The
Company fs expeosed b the ellects of fucruation in the prevailing forcign currency cxchange rates on s financial position and cash ows
Exposure arises primarily due o exchange rate Quctuations between the functionsl currency and other currencies from the Company's
operating, investing and financing acuvities. For the year ended 415t March 2023, no ouistanding trade receivables and trade payables lying in
loreign curtency

{E) Price risk
The company is cxposed 1o price risk in basic ingrediants of Company's raw material and is procuring materials from vendoes directly. The
Company manitors its prive risk and Getors the price increase in pricing of the peoducts,



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes Lo the fnancial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

35 Related party disclesures as required under lnd AS 24, “Related Party Disclosures™, are given below:

i) Name of the related pany and description of relatonship

Sl No.  |Related Parties Nature of Relationship

i) Mr, Ramu 5 Deora Tirectie and CEO (Key Managerial Personned)
{il) Ms. reca Shirsh Shirole C.Ompany Sccretary

(i) G Amphray Laboratonics Koy managerial person is proprieios

{iv) G Amjrhray Pharmeccuticals P Lid [ Relative of key managerial person have contol
vl Triochem Products Grataity Fund | Key managenal pemsan is trustes

by Details of Transactions during the vear with

related parties

[Rs. i Lakhs]

SLNo.  |Related parties Nature of Transactions during the year March 31, 2023| March 31, 2022
{i] 0 Amphray Laboratores Remburshment of cxpenses 19,69
Sales af goods - 51089
4l i3 amphray Pharmaceancils v Lid|Sales of goods - 130,20
{iii) Triochem Products Gratuity Pund | Contribution paid - [t
{iv) Mr. Bamu 5. Deora Loan taken during the vear - 100.0H)
Lvan repaisl during the year IV
Interest paul 1%
v Ms. reca Shirish Shirole Salary Paid 2.4 240
¢) Balances ar end of the vear with related partics.
Sl Ne.  |Retated parties Nature of Transactions during the year March 31, 2023 March 51, 2022
(i} & Amphruy Laboratorics Unher Becepahle 132 .
[if} Trinchem Products Gratulty Fund | Advanee [or G ramity 544 .20

36 Employee Benefits

As per INTY AS 19 "Fmployee Henedis”, the disclosures of Emplovee benefits as defined in the said Accounting Standards are given helow

(1) Defined Contribution Mlan

Comtrbwtion s Defined Contmbution Plan fncludes Providend Fund. The expenses recognised for the year are as unier

Particulars March 31, 2023]  March 31, 2022
Emplover's Contribution 1o Frovidend Fund 133 249
{iiy Defined Renefit Plan

ay Garatuity

The Company operites gramity plan wherein every emplovee s entited 1o the henefit equivalent o 15 days Cone menth safury last drawn far
each completed vear of service depending on the date of joining, The same @ payable on termination of service, retirement of death, whichever
is carlicr. The henefit vests afier 5 vears of continuols service

(b} The foliowing wables st out the assumptions taken, stas of the gratney plan, the amounis recognised o the Company's financial
statemenis as 4t 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022,

&1, No. Particulars

2022 - 2023

2021 - 2022

Valuation Resulos as at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

I Change in present value of obligations

PYO at beginning of period

163

123

Imierest cost

.12

11,44

Current service cosi

(154

.14

st service cost - (nen vested benelitsg

Pust service cosl - (vested benefis)

Benefits paid

{5.52)

Contnbution by plan participants

Business combinations

Curtailmenis

Seiiclemenis

Actuzrial (Grain) / Loss on obligation

.11

{1.63}

POl end of perod

256

|64

1} Interest Expenses

[ierest cost

f - .48

96




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the Anancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

[Ks. in Lakhs]

1 Fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan asscls at the beginnmg 209 7.05
Intercst cost 012 {38
v Net liability
PNTY al beginning of periel | 163 L, 23
Fair value of the assets at beginning report L TR
Wet lighiliy {046y 5.0
¥ Net interest
Imierost expenses 0.1z (1
[meerest income 012 1145
Wit tnterest £
¥l Actual return on plan assets
Actual return on plan assels 030 045
Less Intesest ineome ncluded alove .12 U, 34
Heturn on plan assers excluding Interest ineome 18 (f104)
Vi Actuarial (Gain) / Loss on obligation
Buc 1o demegraphic assumption®
Due (o financial sssumption (1h006) (i1 18}
D 1o experience 017 (1.45)
Toral zctwarial (Gainy © Loss HR ¥ {163
= This figure docs not rellect interrelaionship berween demographic sssumption and fnancial assuraption when a limit is spphied
om the benefin the eflect will be shown as an expericnce
Y111 Fair vilue of plan asscts
Cipening lalr value of plan asscis 208 .05
Adjustment o opening fair value of plan assets {6 Ao
Hewrn on plan assets excluding Interest income .18 [ALAER]]
Interest mcome 0,12 L35
Contribution by employer -
Contribution by emplovee % -
Benelit paid - (R.52)
Fair value of plan assets at end 1493 209
X Past service cosl recognised
Past service st - (non vested benefins
Past service cost - (vestedl benetis) -
Average rematning futuree service 1l vesting of the bonefit .
Recognised past service cost - non vested benefits . .
Recognised past service cost - vested beaclits - -
LUnrecognised past senvice cost - non vested benefitg - .
X Amount to be recognized in the balance sheet and statement of profit and loss account
PV atend of petiod 1H) 163
Fair value of plan assets at end of pericd 1.03 209
Fumded status {11 BT (346
Mot Assets | Liabilite recogniced in the balance sheet {11 AT} {146
X1 Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss account
Current service cuost 1494 1.14
Nel interest
Past service cost - (non vested benefits) -
Past serviee cost - (vested benelies)
Curtailmenms cifect = -
Settelements effect = £
['nrecognised past service cost - non vested benefitg - -
Acturial (Gain) / (Loss) recongnised for the period - 5
Expense recognbzed in the statement of profit and loss aceount 114
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TRIOCHEM FRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes Lo the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

[Hs. in Lakhs)
XIT Otlier comprehensive income (OCT)
Actuarial (Gam) / Loss recognized for the period 011 (1.68)
Asset fimit effect : :
Return on ]'JI-.m assets excluding net inrerest {0,518 (.05
LUnrecognised actuaral (Gain) | Loss from previcus period -
Total acruarial {(Gain) | Loss recogniied im (OC0 (0.7} {160
X1 Movements in the liahility recognized in balance sheet
Dpening net labiity {0146} 320
Adjustment 1w opening halance 045 (3,00
Fapenses as above 01 {14
Contribution pail =
Uither comprenchsive income (001 (0,07 { LAT)
Closing net liabiliny HET {144}
X Schedule 111 of the Companes act 2013
Current lakaliy (LH7 A T3]
Mo - current lability 193 1.9
Xy Projecied serdce cost 31st March 2021 109
XVl Asset information Target Tonal
Allncatiion % Ameunt
Cash anil cash equivalents LN ’
Grratuity fund (The Trustees of the Scheme) 1O L 1.95
Liebl Securty - Government honil 100%
Foguity Securitses - Corporude debt secunities {n.00%
Oither insuranse conirens (100
Praperty 1100
Total ilemired asscis N 154
AVIT Asstinplrions as al A1-Mar-25 41-Mar-22
Morialing [ALM (2012214 TALM {200 2-14)
318 18
Interest  Discount rate 7.29% T 0%
Rate of increase in compensation 4.00% 118
Annual increase in healtheare costs .
Futtere changes in mmomum state healthoare benelits :
Expected average remaining service 1087 1152
Retirerment age 58 years
Exmplover attrition rawe AgeTeods | 2%
Age 460 58 1%
Xvin Seusitivity analysis DR Discount Hale ER: Salarv Escalation Rawe
WO DE+1%] PYODRE-1% PO ER + 1% FYO ER - 1%
mia 15 314 A5 2.5
XIX Expected pavout
Year Expecied  |Expeoted | Expected Expected Expecied Expected
[hutgo Cutgpo Uutgn [Tutge Chunge CHITE 51X 10
first second third lourth fifth len years
Y pavouts (131 0,407 (1.4 07T {1,018 061
XX Assets linbility comparisons
Year Al-Mar-14 | 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-2| 3 1-Mar-22 A1-Mar-24
VO at end of periad 712 573 1125 |63 240
Pian pssets 621 5:59 7.0% AL 1493
Strplas - (Defivit (51 114} {420 (146 ((LAT)
Fxpenence wlustments in plin assets (03, 15} (0,12} L1 {004} {018
Welghted average remaming duration of Defined Benelfit Obligation 1270
XXI Narrations
1) Analysis of defined henefit obligation
The namber of members under the scheme have reemiined same.
The wnal salary has decreased by 9 43% during the accounting period. o
Thie resultant labilily at the end of the period over the beginning of the period has decreased by p}ﬂ%

q¢




TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023

[Rs. in Lakhs]

2) Expected rate of return basis
FROA b the discount rate as at previous valuation date as per the accounting standard,

5) Description of the Plan Assets and Reimbursement Conditions
1008 of the Plan Assets s entrusted to The Trustees of the Scheme under theie Group Gragulty Scheme. The reimbursement is
subject to insurer's Surrender Palicy

1) Investment | Interest Risk
The Company s exposed o tnvestment | Interest risk if the recurn on the invested und falls Below the discount rate used o armive
at preseat valug of the benefit

5) Longevity Risk
The Company s not exposcd o risk of the emplovees [ving lenger as the benefi under the scheme ceases on the employer
separating from the employer for any reasan

) Kisk of Salary Increase
The Company is exposed to higher liabikity of the future salaries rise more than assumption of safary escalation

7y Discount Rate
Ihe discount rate has decrcased [fom 7 10% 1o 7.259% and hence there s 2 decrease in libility leading to sciuarimd gain due w

change in discount rate

37 Transition fo lond AS 116

The cumpany has idenrified that there were no leases which are in the nauee of Right-o-use and henee no lease labiliy s recognised in the
lnancel statements.

38 Balinces of Trade Payables and Loans and Advances are stebject w confirmation and consequential adjosiment. if any

39 The following are analytcal ratios for the vear ended March 31, 2025 anid March 41,2022
Particulars Numcrator Denominator [ 2022-2023 [ 2021-2022 |  Variance
{a) Curreat Katio Current Assets Current Liabilities 3 M §h62 W3 51
ik Retarn on Equity Batio  Profic for the vear less Avesage Sharcholder's Equl (T 011 -1AT.22%
Preference Dividend, if any

(e Inventory marnover rato - Cost of Goods Solil Average Inventory * 12,15 B
(d} Trade Becervahles Fevente from spérations Average Trade Receivables . 1269 S PR
trnover Tatic

() Trude pavables wenover Purchases of Geods and other Average Trarde Peyahles 4,01 4499 H15T%
rabio®® EXPCNSCS

{1 Net capital muemever ratio Revenue from operations Average Working Capital . 73 SR

{Total Cureent Assets less
Total Currens Liabifitics)

(i) Met Profit Ratio Frofit for the vear Revenue Irom operations . n1s - 100000
ih} Keturn on Capital Prafit belore toes and Capital Emploved = Net {000 %14 174 35
emploved Finance Cost worth -+ Deferred tmy
Habilities + Borrowing
i1y Retwen on Investment Income generated from Time weighterl average 1k L0
inFesiments InvestmenLs

4 Capital Management
(i) Risk Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital inclodes isstigd equity capital and ll other equity eeserves atributable w the
ety holders. The primary objective of the Company capital management is o mavimse the shareholder value

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adiustments in light of changes moeconomic conditens and the requirements of the
financial covenants: The Company momitars capiial using a geanng ratee and is measured by net debt diaded by Equity, The Company s Deht is
defined as longaerm and shoreterm borrowings including currem maturities of long term borrowings uned total equity (as shown in balance
sheer) includes issucid capital and all other reserves.
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TRIGCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
[Hs. in Lakhs]
(i) Gearing Ratio
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting pered wis a5 foillows,

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Hormwing (.00 (3,00
Lesa: Cash and Cash Equivalents G50 1. 18092
Net Delut {95.91) (1 L8052
Tt Eqguity 1, 15973 1M Gh
Total Equity and Net Debt 1,063.81 123.73
Grering ralio - .

41 Scgmeat Reporting
The Company s engaged primarily in the husiness of manufacruring and cxpor of pharmaceuticais prodiscts, Al and chemicals, All other
activitics ol the company fevalve armound the main business and hence there is no reportable primany segment, Also the Company does not have
sy reportible peographieal swgment. Hence, disclosures pursuant o the Indian Accounting Standard 108 "Operating Segment” are aot
applicahle

42 Fair Yalue measurement-
The managemenl wssessed that Cash and Cash equivalents, loans. other balanees with Banks, trade receivables: trade payables and other current
liabilities assets spprosimate their carrying ametnes largely due o the short-term maturities of these instruments.

a3 The previous vear figures have been regeouped rechssified, wherever neeessary o contorm 1o the curment presentation as per the schedule 1 ol
Compantes Act, 2003

As per our report of cven date attached,

For Kann Doshi Associates LLP For and on behall of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants L ﬂ
Fi i No.: 1M746W, f '
irm Registration No.: 104746 w;mnﬂﬁ % ‘ﬂ_‘wl) o
J : (Girace H. Deom Purin Parmar
i a Director (DIN: 00312080 Chiief Financial Officer
Kunal Yakharia .
Partner - w
Membership No.: 148916 e /
UM 23 L4893 LERGU i 5. Deora T Ureca Shirish Shirole
! Director (DIN: B0312369) Company Secretary
Mace; Mumbai — ‘
Dated: 26th May, 2023
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Form ISR -1

{-SEBI circular Mo, SEBL/HOMIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIRS/021/655 dated November 03, 2021 an Camman and Simplified Norms for
processing investar's service request by RTAs and norms for furnishing PAN, KYC details and Namination)

REQUEST FOR REGISTERING PAN, KYC DETAILS OR CHANGES / UPDATION THEREOF
[Far Securities (Shares / Debentures / Bonds, etc.] of listed companles held in physical form|

A. 1/ We, request you to Register /| Change [ Update the following (Tick «relevant box) Date : / /
I O PAN | 'O Signature 00 Mobile Number
1 O Bank details O Registered Address O E-mail address

B. Security and KYC Details [ to be filled in by the First Holder |

Name of the Issuer Company Folio No(s)

Face value of Securities | Number of Securities

Distinctive number of From | To

Securities (Optional)

E-mail Address
Mobile Number

>. 'We are submittimn'g documents as per Table below (tick+"as relevant, refer to the Instructions):

[ Name(s) of the Security holder(s) in Capital as per PAN PAN PAN Linked to
Caoptes of PAN of ali the Holderis) duly seil-atested with dale fo be enclcsed wilh this Form Aadhaar -¥Y/N
|.— - Tick any one [+] °
’ 1 Yes/ No
2. Yes | Mo
& Yes [ No
4. ' Yes | No

Mote: * PAN shall be valid only if it is linked to Aadhaar by March 31, 2022, or any other date as may be specified by CBOT
To know the status of yaur PAN Linked to dadhsar check on this link: httpsfwww, incom etax.gov.infiec/foportal

Bank Account Details of First Holder

IFSC

Mame of the Bank &
Tick any one [¥]- Acct type [ Savings DiCurrent

Branch
Bank A/c No. O nro O NRE O Any other |

Note: Criginal canceled cheque leal Deanng the name of the frst holder & mandatory, failing which Frst secunty hokder shall submi copy of bank
aasshook | statement attasied by the Bank for registenng the Bank Accouni datails

| Demat Account Number 16 digit DR/CL | ] J
Also provide Client Master List (CML) of your Demat Account, provided by the Depository Participant. T

Authorization: | | We authorise you (RTA] to update the sbove PAN and KYC detalls in my / our above folis(s) (usa Separate Annexure if extra

space is requirad | inwhich | we are the holder(s), [ strike off what 5 not applicable |
Declaration: Al the sbove facts and documents enclosed are e and comesl
First Holder Joint Holder - 1 Joint Holder - 2 Joint Holder - 3

HName

PIN

Mote: if the address mentioned above differs from the eddress registerad with the Company, you are requestad to recard the new addros¥t-subsiiting the
documents as spacified In point {3) overleaf.

LINK Pg: 2
Tsl



I/We are submitting documents as per Table below (tick+ as relevant, refer to the instructions):

Mo,

|

Document/Information/Details

Instruction/Remark

PANM of (all) the (joint) holder(s)

PAN copies of all the holder(s) duly self-attested with date to be enclosed.

PAM shall be valid only if it is linked to Aadhaar by March 31, 2022, or any date as
may be specified by the CBDT. For Exemptians / Clarifications on PAN, please
refer to Objection Memao as specified in SEBI circular.

Demat Account Number

Provide Client Master List (CML) of your Demat Account, provided by the
Depository Participant.

Proof of Address of the first Holder

Pravide self attested copy of any ONE of the documents, issued by a Govt, Authority,
anly if there is change in the address;

O Client Master List (CML) of your Demat Account, provided by
the Depository Participant.

Valid Passport/ Registered Lease or Sale Agreement of Residence/
Driving License/Flat Maintenance Bill*

Utility bills like Telephane Bill only land line), Electricity bill ar
Gas bill - Nat mare than 3 manths old.

O Identity card [with Photo) / document with address, issued by
Central/State Government and its Departments, Statutory /
Repulatary Authorities, Public Sector Undertakings, Scheduled
Commercial Banks, Public Financial Institutions,

00 For Bl / sub account, Power of Attorney given by Fil / sub-
account to the Custodians {which are duly notarized and / or
apostilled or consularised} that gives the registered address
should be taken.

O The proof of address in the name of the spouse®

* Kindly provide additional self-attested copy of Identity Proof of the holder/

claimant.

Bank details

Provide the latest copy of the bank statement with details of bank name, branch,
account number and IFSC or Original cancelled chegque leaf bearing the name of
first holder. Alternatively, Bank detalls available in the CML as enclosed will be
updated in the folio,

E-mail address

As mentioned on Form ISR-1, alternatively the E-mail address available in the
CML as enclosed will be updated in the folio.

Mobile

As mentioned on Form |SR-1, alternatively the mobile number available in the
ChIL as enclosed will be updated in the folio:

Specimen Signature

Provide banker's attestation of the signature of the halder(s) as per Farm ISR =2
and Original cancelled cheque leaf bearing the name of the first holder.

Nomination

Submit Form|s) as per any ONE of the following options.
O SH-13 For First Time Nomination
O 5H-14 For Cancellation or Variation in Nomination
O 5H-14 and I1SR-3 For Cancellation of Nomination and to “Opt-Out”

) . ) \ . d
O 1SR-3 To "OPT-Out” of Momination or if No-Namlinati s‘ﬂ'éﬂd@
/) cj-‘ dr

MNote: All the above forms are alse availabla on cur website,

-

il

-

%

L
tr
o

LINK

loZ




FormISR-2

|SEBI circular No, SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 03,2021)

Confirmation of Signature of Securities Holder by the Banker

: 1. Bank Name and Branch
2. Bank contact details
__ Postal Address.

_ Moabile/Tel number
E-mail address

3. Bank Account number | wltac ciginil wuninllid daigie Lef |

j 4, Account opening date

5. Account holder's PAN ~ Account Holder's Name
0 ) o
i i) R B
iii) - i)
v iv)

LIE..__I_a{te;t-p.hntugraph of the account holders)

it Holder Photo ithe Holder Photo itk Helder Photo §1- Holder Phato

7. Account hui;:};ri_::.i"de-t_éiﬁ as per‘I Bank Records
a) Address

~ b) Mobile/Tel number
. B Ematendiess
d) Signature(s) of the Holder(s)

X

'i‘u'] g el ";"ﬁ.qhbn.l-i-'l: g"-—g.pmlux and Baal Sreul
- [To be Mandatorily Filled by the Bank Official) -~
Place: ~ Name of the Bank Manager :
Date: . Employee Code : .
Mabile / Tel no: | Emall_id : -
LINK
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED m
Registered Office; 4™ Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir, P, M. Road, Fort,

Mumbai, Maharashtsa, PIN: 400001 Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150 -

Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail: info( amphrav.com

Website: www tdochemproducts.com Corporate [dentity Number; L24249MH1972PLCO15544
Form No.: MGT - 11

PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

“Regd. Folio No. DP 1D
No. of Shares held *CL 1D
[/ We, being the member(s) of Shares of the above-named Company, hereby appoint:

1}, Name & Address:

Email Id: Signature or failing him / her

2), Name & Address:

Email 1d: Signature or failing him / her

%), Name & Address:

Email Id: Signature or failing him / her

and whose signature are appended below as my ¢ our proxy to attend and vote for me / us and on my /
our behalf at the 51" Annual General Meeting of the Company, 1o be held on Thursday, the 24" day of
August, 2023 at 03.00 p.m. at 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P. M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400001 and at
any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolution as are indicated below:

SL No. of Resolution (as in the Notice annexed)

I 2 ‘ 3 ‘ 4 '
- i
(Tick Mark the 5. No. of Resolution of Which the Proxy is appointed)

Signed this dav of 2023

Member's Folio/DI' ID-Client 1D No..

Signature of Shareholder(s)

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

|oYy



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED m
Registered Office: 4" Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P, M, Road, Fort, i
Mumbai, Maharashtea, PIN: 400001, Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150 o

Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail: info(@ amphray com
Website: www riochemproducts com Corporate Identity Number: L24249MH1972PLCOT5544

BALLOT FORM
| 5r. No. Particulars Details ]
. Name and Registered Address of the -
Sole First named Shareholder
2 - Name(s) of the Joint Holder(s) (if any)

3 Registered Folio No.
DP 1D No. and Client 1D No.
4. Number of Share(s) held _
| / We hereby exercise my  our vote(s) in respect of the Resolutions set out in the Notice of the 51

Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be held on Thursday, 24" August, 2023, by sending my
“our assent or dissent to the said Resolution by placing the tick (Y) mark at the appropriate box below:

llem Hesolution | No.of (FOR) (AGAINST)
No. Shares I /We |/ We
i ASSEnt 1o dissent
the from the

resolution | resolution

| 1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended |
March 31, 2023 together with the Reports of the Board of |
Directors and the Auditors thereon,

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Sﬁlm Sundar Sharma |

3
(DIN: 01457322), who retires by rotation and being eligible, .
offers himself for re-appointment.
5. To approve the continuation of directorship of Mr, Shvam
Sundar Sharma (DIN: 01457322), aged 76 vears as a ‘Non-
Executive, Non-Independent Director of the Company,
who is liable to retire by rotation and had offered himself
for re-appointment,
1. Authorization for related panty transaction u's 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
Mace:
Date; (Signature of the Sharcholder)

Note: Please read the instructions printed below carclully before exercising yvour vote

Instruction

l. - The Ballot Form is provided for the benefit of the Members who do not have access to ewvoting
facility,

2. A Member can opt for only one mode of voting ie. either through e-voting or by Ballot

cast votes by both modes, then voting done through e-voting shall prevail and Ballot ghal
as invalid.

|05



TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED ml

Registered Office: 4™ Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. I, M. Road, Fort,
Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN: 400001 Telephone: 00 91 (22) 22066 3150
Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail; info(e amphray.com

Website: www triochemproducts.com Corporate Identity Number; L24249MH1972PLCO15544

CHEM

3. For detailed instruction on e~voting, please refer 1o the notes appended to the Notice of the AGM.

4, The Scrutinizer will collate the votes downloaded from the evoting system and voles received
through post to declare the final resull for each of the Resolution forming part of the Notice of the
AGM.

Process and manner for Member opting to vote by using the Ballot Form

1. Please complete and sign the Ballot Form (no other form er photocopy thereof is permitted) and
send it so as to reach the Serutinizer appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, Mrs. Ragini
Chokshi, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.: FCS1430) at the office of Company's
Registrar & Transfer Agent.

The Form should be signed by the Member as per the Specimen signature registered with the

=

Company Depositories. In case of joint holding, the Form should be completed and singed by the
first named Member and in histher absence, by the next named joint holder. A power of Attorney
(POA) holder may vote on behalf of @ member, meationing the registration number of the POA
registered with the Company or enclosing an attested copy of the POA. Exercise of vote by Ballots not
permitted through proxy,

3. In case the shares are held by companies, trusts, societies, etc, the duly completed Ballot Form should
be accompanied by a certified true copy of the relevant Board Resolution/Authorization.

4. Votes should be cast in case of each resolution, either in {favor or against by putting the tick (Y) marks
in the column provided in the Ballot,

5. The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion of the share held by them in the paid-up
equity share capital of the company as on 17" August 2023 and as per the Register of Members of the
Company.

6. Duly completed Ballot Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than Wednesday, August 23, 2023

(05.00 p.m. IST). Ballot Form received after August 23, 2023, will be strictly treated as if the reply

form the Members has not been received.

A Member may request for a duplicate Ballot Form, if so required. However, duly filled in and signed

duplicate Form should reach the Scrutinizer not later than the date and time specified in serial no. 6

above.

8. Unsigned, incomplete, improperly, or incorrectly tick marked Ballot Forms will be rejected. A Form
will also be rejected if 1t is received torn, defaced, or mutilated 1o an extent which makes it difficult
for the Scrutinizer o identify either the Member or as to whether the votes are in favor or against or if
the signature cannot be verified,

9. The decision of the Scrutinizer on the validity of the Ballot Form and any other related matter shall be
final,

10. The Results on above resolutions shall be declared not later than 48 hours from the conclusion of the
AGM of the Company and the resolutions will be deemed 10 be passed on the AGM date subject 1o
receipt of the requisite number of votes in favor of the Resolutions.

L1 The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report(s) will be available on the w
Company (www.iriochemproducts.com) and on Service Provider's website (www.cdslie iz
communication of the same to the BSE Limited within 48 hours from the conclusion fg SAGM.; |

:‘(
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TRIOCHEM PRODUCTS LIMITED

Registered Office: 4 Floor, Sambava Chambers, Sir. P, M. Road, Fort, m
Mumbai, Maharashtra, PIN: 400001, Telephone: 00 91 (22) 2266 3150 CHEM
Fax: 00 91 (22) 2202 4657 E-mail: infole amphray. com

Website: www Iriochemproducts.com E-mail: investor(et triechemproducts.com

Corporate Identity Number: L24249MH1972PLC0O15544

ATTENDANCE SLIP

Name of the Attending Member(s):

*Folio No.: I J

[P 1D Na.:

Client 1D No.: [

Wo. of Shares:

'_[_hr:reh.:r' record my presence at the 31 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of rhe_CﬂmBany held at 4" Floor,
Sambava Chambers, Sir P.M. Road, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, at 03.00 p.m. on Thursday, the 24" August
2023,

Name of the attending Sharcholder/Proxy

Signature of the attending

Sharcholder/Proxy

Notes:
1) AMember / Proxy holder attending the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip to the meeting
and hand it over at the entrance dulv signed.
2) A Member | Proxy holder attending the meeting should bring copy of the Annual Report for
reference at the meeting,

*Applicable in case of share held in Physical Form

Cut Here

ELECTRONIC VOTING PARTICUALRS

EVSN i User [D (PAN / Sequence Number)

(Electronic Voling Sequence Number)

NOTE: Please read the complete instructions given under the Note {T]‘IL instructions for sharcholders
voting electronically) to the Notice of Annual General Meeting. The Voting time starts from 21™ August
2023 from 09.00 a.m. to ends on 23" August 2023 at (5.00 p.m. The voting module shall be disabled by

CDSL for voting thereafter

[e}
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